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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you all for

          3  coming. As I hope everyone knows, my name is Kathryn

          4  Freed, I chair the Contracts Committee for the City

          5  Council. We are actually looking at two things

          6  today, one is a vote on Intro. 165-A, which we have

          7  actually had hearings before in this Committee, and

          8  that deals with requiring vendors under contract

          9  with the City of New York to refrain from any

         10  unlawful, discriminatory practices as defined

         11  pursuant to the terms of the City Human Rights Law

         12  which is codified in Title VIII of the

         13  Administrative Code. The shorthand in that is, prior

         14  to this time it was not clear from any City contract

         15  that the City Human Rights Law was covered under

         16  City contracts, they only referenced I guess Title

         17  50, and they referenced the State Human Rights Law,

         18  but they didn't reference ours.

         19                 This bill will solve that problem,

         20  and also make it very clear how someone brings, if

         21  someone has a complaint of discrimination, where to

         22  bring that complaint to and it gives more teeth to

         23  the City Human Rights Law in that anyone, if there

         24  is a conviction of discrimination, that they could

         25  be disbarred from doing work with the City or even
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          2  lose the contract that it was brought under.

          3                 The second thing we were going to do

          4  today is have a follow-up hearing on the Human

          5  Service Contract, and the delay in payment. We have

          6  had these hearings before, this is a follow-up to

          7  that to see where we are on this and why it

          8  continues.

          9                 Human Service contracts, also

         10  referred to as client service contracts, are

         11  programs contracted for by the City on behalf of

         12  third-party clients, including programs to provide

         13  social services, health or medical services, housing

         14  and shelter assistance services, legal services,

         15  employment assistant services and vocational,

         16  educational and recreation programs.

         17                 These contracts provide vital

         18  services for the day-to-day operation of this City.

         19                 On April 13th, 1999, the Committee on

         20  Contracts held hearings to examine the growing

         21  concern of delays in the approval of human service

         22  contracts.

         23                 The hearing was in response to a

         24  report by City Project, which detailed that Human

         25  Service Providers were experiencing serious
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          2  financial hardship, as a result of delays in

          3  contract extensions, renewals and awards.

          4                 The survey studied the effects of

          5  services in seven areas, youth, arts and culture,

          6  senior legal aid, community/economic development,

          7  crime prevention and health. The damage to these

          8  organizations was evident.

          9                 As of October 1998, 62 percent of the

         10  55 groups surveyed reduced staff and/or programs.

         11  Twenty-four percent of the groups had to delay

         12  program implementation or development, 25 percent

         13  have taken out a loan or taken time to develop new

         14  funds. Only six groups of those surveyed have felt

         15  no impact thus far, and one program had to be

         16  cancelled in its entirety.

         17                 Recently City Project has issued

         18  another report that consists of a survey of 77 human

         19  service providers that contract with the City. The

         20  report is alarming and details serious problems in

         21  the City's procurement practices.

         22                 The failure to pay these providers in

         23  a timely fashion has resulted in contractors having

         24  to borrow money in order to begin providing services

         25  on behalf of the City. Among the most serious
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          2  representations of the survey, the average time

          3  between the award of the contract and payment to a

          4  community-based organization is 3.85 months.

          5  Fifty-two percent of the CBOs report that they took

          6  out loans in order to begin services. Agency

          7  contracting delays vary widely. The delays are

          8  difficult to justify considering that over 80

          9  percent of the contracts are renewals, and, finally,

         10  concerns regarding the use of negotiated

         11  acquisition.

         12                 Human service providers are also

         13  reporting a great deal of frustration regarding the

         14  lack of overall accountability in the contracting

         15  process.

         16                 The frustration according to the

         17  survey stems from the lack of assistance that these

         18  groups received in answering contracting problems.

         19  Other problems include excessive demands for

         20  paperwork, delay and agency responses to inquiries

         21  by providers and the lack of uniformity and agency

         22  management regarding procurement issues.

         23                 The purpose of today's hearing is to

         24  respond to the growing concern of human service

         25  providers and to try to address the fears, concerns
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          2  and frustrations they face when it comes to

          3  understanding the innerworkings of the City's

          4  contracting process.

          5                 It is the Committee's intention to

          6  uncover the problems that persist to cause these

          7  delays and discuss what solutions may be available

          8  in order to ease the burdens that currently exist. I

          9  mean, put quite succinctly, there are no reasons for

         10  these delays and they are clearly hurting service

         11  providing throughout the City and many citizens of

         12  the City and we want to stop it, plain and simple.

         13                 Okay, our first witnesses today are

         14  the Mayor's Office on Contracts, and I want to

         15  welcome Michael Best, who is the new Director for

         16  the Mayor's Office on Contracts.

         17                 I will just remind you that it has

         18  always been the practice of this Committee that

         19  before you testify, we swear in our witnesses. So,

         20  if you would raise your right hand.

         21                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         22  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         23                 MR. BEST: I do.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. Thank

         25  you very much. As I said, welcome. And just for the
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          2  record, please state your name and title and then

          3  proceed.

          4                 MR. BEST: Chairperson Freed and

          5  members of the Committee, good morning.

          6                 My name is Michael Best, I am the

          7  Director of the Mayor's Office of Contracts and the

          8  City Chief Procurement Officer. With me this morning

          9  are Deputy Director Sandy Singer and Jeffrey

         10  Weinstein.

         11                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         12  appear before you today.

         13                 I have been invited here to discuss

         14  the timeliness of payments to Human Service

         15  Contractors.

         16                 Human Services Contractors provide

         17  vital services to our citizens, and the issue of

         18  delays and payments to them is an important one.

         19                 I have reviewed the recent report by

         20  City Project which describes a survey of various

         21  not-for-profit community-based organizations that

         22  contract with the City. While I believe that the

         23  report is seriously flawed, it is entirely one-sided

         24  and overly anecdotal. It highlights an issue we can

         25  work on together.
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          2                 Delays between the time Human Service

          3  contractors commence work and the time that the

          4  contractors receive their first payment are all too

          5  common, and they are not acceptable.

          6                 These delays occur when contracts are

          7  retroactive; that is, when contractors commence work

          8  before the contract is registered.

          9                 The Administration has initiated

         10  systemic steps to address this matter, and my office

         11  is following through with agencies.

         12                 In addition, we believe that the

         13  Council and the Contractor community have an

         14  opportunity to play a constructive role in this

         15  effort.

         16                 The City is confronted with the task

         17  of processing thousands of human services

         18  procurements by the end of each fiscal year. People

         19  outside of the procurement system often think of

         20  this process simply as renewing contracts.

         21                 Actually, the process includes making

         22  new awards, sometimes to new contractors, and

         23  sometimes to incumbent contractors. Encumbering

         24  funds for multi-year contracts, amending contracts

         25  to add time to the contract length or money to the
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          2  contract amount and renewing contracts as well.

          3                 Each of these processes has its own

          4  particular protocol, dictated by statute, rule

          5  and/or policy. Even after an agency has determined

          6  that it intends to make an award, the required

          7  process can include a responsibility determination,

          8  negotiation of the terms and dollar amount of the

          9  contract, a recommendation for award, a public

         10  hearing and finally, registration of the contract.

         11                 Many of the steps in this process

         12  require not only action by the agency, but also

         13  action by the contractor. For instance, contractors

         14  must participate in negotiation and they must

         15  provide needed information.

         16                 There appears to be a misconception

         17  among some Human Services contractors, however, that

         18  funds should begin to flow as soon as an

         19  organization is notified that it will be the

         20  recipient of an award.

         21                 The reality is that the law prohibits

         22  funds from flowing to a contractor until the

         23  contract is registered. When contractors commence

         24  work on a contact prior to its registration,

         25  therefore, the City is unable to make payments to
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          2  these contractors, even though the contractors are

          3  providing services.

          4                 As I have said, we refer to contracts

          5  where work is commenced prior to registration as

          6  retroactive.

          7                 To mitigate the effects of

          8  retroactive contracts, particularly Human Services

          9  contracts, the City has in place a program to

         10  provide interest-free loans to contractors after a

         11  contract is approved but before it is registered. In

         12  conjunction with the fund for the City of New York,

         13  the City operates an $8 million revolving loan fund

         14  that advances funds to contractors to cover this

         15  interim period. To further ameliorate this

         16  situation, upon registration of the contract a

         17  number of agencies provided cash advances to Human

         18  Services contractors. These advances typically

         19  provide one or more months of funding in advance of

         20  the contractor's submission of required expenditure

         21  reports.

         22                 While these programs have been an

         23  effective means of providing needed cash flow to

         24  Human Services contractors, we have also been

         25  working on ways to reduce the number of retroactive
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          2  contracts.

          3                 As you know, in Fiscal 2000, the

          4  Mayor added a new procurement indicator to the

          5  Mayor's Management Report, to track each agency's

          6  retroactive contracts.

          7                 The inclusion of this indicator in

          8  the MMR has increased agency attention on the

          9  importance of getting procurements completed on

         10  time. Agencies with low performance rates are now

         11  developing corrective action plans.

         12                 These plans include staggering

         13  contract terms to avoid a natural bottleneck, if all

         14  contracts expire on the same day, as well as

         15  designating staff to focus on new programs and on

         16  expiring contracts.

         17                 When other procurement-related

         18  indicators have been introduced in the MMR, agencies

         19  have significantly improved their performance, and

         20  we expect the same thing to happen here.

         21                 As agencies implement corrective

         22  action plans, we anticipate that they will steadily

         23  and substantially reduce the number of retroactive

         24  contracts.

         25                 Changes in the City's procurement
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          2  system would also help to reduce the number of

          3  retroactive contracts. The current Charter

          4  provisions relating to procurement contain

          5  extraordinarily detailed and burdensome procedures.

          6  In this year's State of the City speech, Mayor

          7  Giuliani announced the formation of a new Charter

          8  Revision Commission to improve the efficiency and

          9  effectiveness of government. In regard to

         10  procurement, the Mayor pledged to ask the Commission

         11  to study how the City's contract procedures could be

         12  streamlined. Reducing the number of steps that must

         13  be completed before a contract is approved, while

         14  maintaining procedural safeguards to protect the

         15  City, would make the contracting process more timely

         16  and efficient for the City and for contractors

         17  alike.

         18                 Our revision of the Charter would lay

         19  the groundwork for more efficient contracting in the

         20  future. The Mayor's Office of Contracts is already

         21  working to accelerate the procurement process under

         22  the existing charter.

         23                 We have piloted a model request for

         24  proposal format that would develop in concert with

         25  the Human Services action group, which is a
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          2  partnership between the City and Human Services

          3  providers.

          4                 All of the City's Human Service

          5  agencies are now using the model RFP, and we expect

          6  to formally roll it out to all agencies in the near

          7  future.

          8                 The model RFP speeds up the

          9  preparation and issuance of RFPs and the evaluation

         10  of proposals by City agencies, and also makes it

         11  easier for proposers to understand and respond to

         12  agency solicitations.

         13                 The Council can also help to

         14  streamline the procurement process and make it more

         15  efficient.

         16                 Indeed, the Council can take an

         17  important step right now by raising the small

         18  purchase limits. Small purchases are not burdened by

         19  many of the procedural requisites imposed upon

         20  higher dollar value procurements, such as public

         21  notice of solicitation and award, presolicitation

         22  review report, recommendation for award, supplier

         23  protests, written notice of non-responsiveness,

         24  VENDEX and public hearings. Thus, small purchases

         25  can be processed very quickly. The current small
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          2  purchase dollar limits of $25,000 for goods and

          3  services, and $50,000 for construction and

          4  construction-related services, however, are simply

          5  too low.

          6                 In 1997, the Procurement Policy Board

          7  passed a rule increasing these limits, $50,000 for

          8  goods and services and $100,000 for construction and

          9  construction-related services.

         10                 But pursuant to the Charter, a change

         11  in the small purchase limits cannot take effect

         12  without ratification by the Council.

         13                 We believe that the Council should

         14  pass Resolution 58, which would ratify the PPB's

         15  rule change, and we would then propose working with

         16  the PPB and the Council to increase the small

         17  purchase limits to $100,000 across the Board.

         18                 Such an increase would dramatically

         19  reduce paperwork and vastly accelerate the

         20  processing of hundreds of procurements a year,

         21  particularly by agencies like the Department of

         22  Youth and Community Development, which has many

         23  small dollar value clients services contracts.

         24                 It would also free up agency and

         25  oversight resources in time to focus on a higher
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          2  dollar value, more complex procurements, so that

          3  they could be processed more quickly as well.

          4                 Another area where the Council,

          5  together with contractors, could help speed up the

          6  process, involved line item appropriation

          7  discretionary fund contracts from the Council or

          8  from Borough Presidents. These contracts are often

          9  retroactive because they are initiated no earlier

         10  than June of each year or later, after the Council

         11  and the Administration jointly approved the City's

         12  budget.

         13                 The process by which such an

         14  allocation becomes a contract is actually quite

         15  extensive. Although the Council or a Borough

         16  President may designate a particular contractor, all

         17  the other requirements of the procurement process

         18  apply. Thus, such an allocation is just the

         19  beginning of the process.

         20                 There are, however, actions the

         21  Council and the contractors can take to eliminate or

         22  mitigate delays associated with certain steps in the

         23  process.

         24                 Immediately following the adoption of

         25  the budget, the Council can inform the designated
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          2  contractor of the process and the schedule that will

          3  be required.

          4                 For example, the contractor could be

          5  advised of the need to develop and negotiate a

          6  specific scope of work, budget, levels of service,

          7  outcome measures, and contract terms with the

          8  contracting holding agency.

          9                 The contractor could also be advised

         10  of the procedural steps necessary to complete the

         11  process, such as an easy-to-complete VENDEX

         12  questionnaire and Division of Labor Services

         13  employment report in a timely manner.

         14                 The more quickly these required steps

         15  were taken, the more quickly these contracts can be

         16  processed and registered.

         17                 Reducing the number of retroactive

         18  contracts in the Human Service area is an important

         19  goal, and the Administration has already taken

         20  action both to alleviate the effects of the

         21  retroactive contracts and to reduce the number of

         22  retroactive contracts.

         23                 We look forward to working with you

         24  to further address this issue and to improve the

         25  procurement process for both agencies and Human
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          2  Services contractors.

          3                 I will be happy to answer any

          4  questions that you have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 I guess the first question I have to

          8  ask, and I was sorry I didn't see it addressed here,

          9  but since we are dealing with Human Service

         10  contracts, right now Human Service contracts are

         11  exempt from the interest payments when there is a

         12  delay in the payment of the contracts, why is that?

         13  And how do we justify that as we pay construction or

         14  goods and services, if their contracts are delayed,

         15  why wouldn't we be even more interested when we are

         16  dealing with humans and reception of contracts and

         17  services.

         18                 MR. BEST: I believe that the reason

         19  for that is that the Human Services contracts are

         20  often paid on an advanced basis, that is before

         21  expenditure reports are put in, and, therefore, I

         22  believe the reason that the rules are the way they

         23  are on this is that the advance payments, it

         24  wouldn't be appropriate, since there are advance

         25  payments going on, to be paying interest.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, obviously if

          3  they were advance payments you wouldn't pay

          4  interest, but the problem tends to be in that we

          5  have heard continuously and for the last several

          6  years, that in point of fact the Human Services

          7  contracts are delayed in payment, and it would seem

          8  in a case like that, that it would be even more

          9  reason to pay back the interest, particularly when

         10  we are dealing with groups that have had to go out

         11  and on their own get loans and bridge loans, and

         12  they end up swallowing that interest or any money

         13  that they have to subsume.

         14                 MR. BEST: Well, if I could have one

         15  moment? If I might, the reason that I focused in my

         16  testimony on retroactive contracts is because I

         17  think that there is something of a definitional

         18  issue here, and, in fact, in reading the report --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: There usually is.

         20                 MR. BEST: In reading the report, one

         21  of the things that struck me and that makes it

         22  somewhat difficult to respond directly to some of

         23  the things that are in there, that it doesn't define

         24  what award means for these contractors or for their

         25  report itself. It simply says there is a delay
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          2  between award and payment.

          3                 I suspect that there is a difference

          4  of opinion here as to what award actually means. But

          5  as I tried to make clear in my testimony, the fact

          6  that an agency has told a contractor that they

          7  intend to make an award to them, does not mean that

          8  an award has been made or that the City is legally

          9  able to make payment to the contractor; therefore --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Excuse me a

         11  second. Are you drawing a difference between

         12  renewals and new contracts?

         13                 MR. BEST: No, I'm not.

         14                 An award is an award, and what I am

         15  trying to get to here, I am trying to give a little

         16  definitional background so I can explain my point in

         17  response to your question, is that if a contract has

         18  not been registered, the City cannot pay, by law the

         19  City cannot pay for services even if they are --

         20  until the contract has been registered, and we are

         21  not allowed to pay interest on those.

         22                 We do pay interest under the Prompt

         23  Payment Rule after registration if we delay payment

         24  after an expenditure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Even on Human
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          2  Service contracts? That was not my understanding.

          3                 MR. BEST: Again, no. But it is not

          4  the same issue as the one that I think is the

          5  problem here.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: No, the problem is

          7  very simple. The problem is that many of these

          8  groups are providing the services long before they

          9  get paid, and then the burden of extending the

         10  programs that are totally necessary for the

         11  residents of this City, they get that burden. It is

         12  unfair, particularly when we are talking about

         13  renewals, when we should have over the years gone

         14  through most of these problems and worked these

         15  problems out, that they are the ones who are asked

         16  to bear this burden. That is why we see an

         17  increasing number of these programs, either cut back

         18  on their programs, lose staff or in some cases go

         19  out of business entirely and we have had these

         20  hearings before, and I know you weren't here then,

         21  but the frustration level just gets bigger and

         22  bigger and every time we are told it is one thing or

         23  another, but the bottom line is most of these groups

         24  are still, their payments are still delayed, and

         25  particularly in something as necessary as Human
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          2  Service contracts, which really are the ones that

          3  provide necessary services, in some cases almost

          4  life or death services, to residents of the City, it

          5  would seem to me there should be a priority to make

          6  sure that these programs continue.

          7                 MR. BEST: The point I was trying to

          8  make was not to dispute that this needs to be taken

          9  care of, but that the problem, I submit to you, is

         10  not what happens after registration, but the fact

         11  that there are retroactive contracts, and that the

         12  City is unable to make any payments at all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: We understand the

         14  semantic difference, as I said.

         15                 MR. BEST: It is not just a semantic

         16  difference respectfully. It is a difference in --

         17  many Human Services contracts, once it is registered

         18  they get an advance payment, so the issue, I submit

         19  to you, is that too many of the contracts are

         20  retroactive, and the reason -- so the contractors

         21  will begin work on a date for a contract term say of

         22  July 1. If the contract is not registered until

         23  August or September, they cannot get paid for those

         24  services until much later, and so that, I suspect,

         25  is where the problem is.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, obviously we

          3  would like to get them registered ahead of time. But

          4  then particularly in renewals, doesn't it make sense

          5  to start the renewals much earlier, if you know you

          6  are going to run into this problem?

          7                 There seems to be a problem judging

          8  from the high percentage of contracts that have this

          9  problem, then perhaps we should start the renewal

         10  process earlier.

         11                 MR. BEST: We are trying to do that,

         12  and we also -- I would say that the renewal process,

         13  it is not a simple matter of just signing a piece of

         14  paper and you have a new deal. Many of the same

         15  requirements that apply to a new contract also apply

         16  to renewals.

         17                 As I think I made clear in my

         18  testimony, when an incumbent contractor, for

         19  instance, wins a competition, it is not simply a

         20  renewal, it is a whole new procurement. And, so,

         21  then all of the requirements apply.

         22                 I believe that the system has to be

         23  streamlined. I believe the Charter Revision would

         24  help. I also believe that there are things that I

         25  have outlined in my testimony that both agencies can
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          2  do and that the Council could help us to do, it

          3  would make it easier for us to deal with the very

          4  burdensome procedures that currently exist in the

          5  Charter.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: If you could get

          7  me some information, I think in the past I have

          8  asked for this information, but as I said, since you

          9  are new, perhaps you could get us the numbers as to,

         10  since you said that you felt that the numbers that

         11  we were using were flawed, perhaps you could give us

         12  the numbers that you find of renewal contracts, the

         13  numbers that are delayed, the number of retroactive

         14  payments there are, the length of time generally

         15  between when there is an award or an agency is

         16  notified of an award and when they actually get the

         17  money.

         18                 I have also asked in the past and

         19  would really appreciate getting information showing

         20  -- because it seems to this Committee that the

         21  delays have gotten worse and worse under this

         22  Administration than prior times.  I might be wrong

         23  about that, so I had asked for information on the

         24  delay of time between -- the amount of time that it

         25  takes between actually the contract being awarded
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          2  and when they actually get payment, and break it

          3  down say between '90 and '96 and '96 and 2000.

          4  Because, obviously, a number of people in this room

          5  today will tell you that it would seem like these

          6  delays have gotten worse and worse over the years.

          7  Now, maybe we are wrong, and you could, you know --

          8  so, I would like to see the information, because if

          9  we are right, then obviously, there is a problem

         10  that has to be addressed.

         11                 MR. BEST: Well, I can point out there

         12  are some numbers that you can look at now, which

         13  don't require us to get them back to you, you can

         14  get them today, without coming to us, and that is in

         15  the MMR.

         16                 If you want to see --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I go over the MMR

         18  every year.

         19                 MR. BEST: I didn't mean to suggest

         20  that you do not, Council Member Freed. My point is,

         21  though, that the Administration takes this issue

         22  very seriously. The Mayor takes it so seriously that

         23  he has made this into an MMR indicator. There is the

         24  old adage that what gets measured gets done, and, so

         25  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I think you will

          3  find that a lot of those requests came from this

          4  Committee in the first place.

          5                 MR. BEST: Well, I don't believe this

          6  one did. I believe this was the Administration's

          7  initiative. But in any even --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I don't think so.

          9                 MR. BEST: The point is that if you

         10  want to see information regarding the number of

         11  retroactive contracts broken down by agency in

         12  Fiscal Year 2000, it is in the MMR now, and we

         13  anticipate that those numbers will get better as

         14  agencies implement their corrective action plans.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, by the

         16  way, we have looked at the MMR, even in retroactive

         17  contracts, and what we found out, and what we were

         18  looking at in FY 2000, every one of the Department

         19  of Employment 62 contracts was registered after its

         20  start date. The agency with the best record of

         21  processing Human Service contracts was the

         22  Department for the Aging with only 30 percent of its

         23  305 contracts registered on time.

         24                 ACS was late with 369 out of 384

         25  contracts. DYCD was late with 481 out of 488

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  contracts. Overall, in FY 2000, 1,936 contracts were

          3  registered after the start date. Of these 1,538 or

          4  79 percent, were contracts with the top Mayoral

          5  Human Service agencies.

          6                 MR. BEST: Do you have a question you

          7  would like me to respond to, Council member?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: No, but you had

          9  suggested that we look at this and this might answer

         10  my question, so I wanted to point out that, yes, we

         11  have looked at this, and it would seem to me this is

         12  a less than admirable record, and maybe there is

         13  something clearly going on that we should be

         14  changing?

         15                 I mean, in every one of those cases,

         16  look at those percentages.  Those Human Service

         17  providers were the ones who bore the brunt of trying

         18  to pick up the slack.

         19                 I would suggest to you that the

         20  Administration, and that we in office have a duty to

         21  be providing, to see that these services are

         22  providing, and it seems to me, like instead of

         23  providing them, we are putting road blocks in their

         24  way, and that system has to change.

         25                 Okay, I have one more quick question
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          2  and then I will take questions.

          3                 The other thing, another program that

          4  you made reference to in your statement was the fact

          5  that the City has a program to provide interest-free

          6  loans to contractors after a contract is approved

          7  but before it is registered.

          8                 In the past we have asked to find out

          9  how many contractors, or how many Human Service

         10  contractors were actually awarded money from the

         11  fund for the City of New York, and I would request

         12  that again, if we could get a list of those

         13  contractors who actually got money from the

         14  revolving loan fund, but at the same time, how many

         15  people have applied and how do you let contractors

         16  with the City know that these funds are available?

         17                 MR. BEST: If I might for one moment.

         18  I have some statistics here, if you could bear with

         19  me.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

         21                 MR. BEST: Council Member Freed, the

         22  numbers that I have are right now from Fiscal 2001,

         23  that is this fiscal year, the loan has made 167, a

         24  total of 167 loans so far this fiscal year.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So, is that to 167
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          2  different groups?

          3                 MR. BEST: Yes.

          4                 And the total amount loaned out is

          5  just over $8.1 million. The average loan was 48 --

          6  so far this year, just over $48,500.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Can you say that

          8  again?

          9                 MR. BEST: The average loan this year

         10  from the fund, during this fiscal year, is just over

         11  $48,500.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, and is that

         13  just human service providers?

         14                 MR. BEST: Almost entirely. I am not

         15  sure that it is 100 percent, but it is pretty close.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         17                 As I said, we would like to get a

         18  list of those agencies who actually got the loans,

         19  or those contractors.

         20                 MR. BEST: We will be happy to provide

         21  that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: We have a number

         23  of questions. In fact, it occurs to me that I was

         24  remiss and I didn't announce who was here, so let me

         25  do that right now.
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          2                 To my right is Council Member Lopez,

          3  Council Member Perkins. To my left, Council Member

          4  White, Council Member Moskowitz, Council Member

          5  Espada. I think Council Member Lopez has questions.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In regard to

          7  your testimony on the first page, the third

          8  statement in the second paragraph, you challenge the

          9  report of City Project in your testimony, and in

         10  your testimony here in the third statement you

         11  question the validity of that report.

         12                 On the basis of what do you question

         13  the validity of that report?

         14                 MR. BEST: Well, there are a number of

         15  things I think are wrong with the report. That is

         16  not to say that I entirely question that there is an

         17  issue here, I don't. I believe that there is an

         18  issue and the Administration takes very seriously

         19  the need to reduce the number of retroactive

         20  contracts, particularly in the Human Services area

         21  so that Human Services contractors will be paid in a

         22  timely manner after they have commenced services.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You have not

         24  answered my question. I am asking you specifically,

         25  on the base of what are you challenging the report
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          2  of City Project?

          3                 MR. BEST: As far as what I believe

          4  the problems with this report are, there are a

          5  number of them.

          6                 First off, I think, as I have said to

          7  Chairperson Freed, I think problems in terms of what

          8  is being measured here, it is not clear at all from

          9  this report what they mean by award. If what they

         10  mean by award, when they are measuring the time

         11  between award and payment. If what they mean by

         12  award is that the award is the time that the

         13  contractor is notified that there will be an award,

         14  that the agency intends to make an award, I would

         15  submit that is not a proper time to measure, simply

         16  because there are so many things that then have to

         17  happen by law that require action by both the agency

         18  and the contractor before a contract can be

         19  registered.

         20                 Secondly, I think it is not clear to

         21  me what agencies all of these contractors are

         22  contracting with, and the reason that that is a

         23  problem is that there are several mentions in this

         24  report of contracts let with the Board of Education.

         25  Well, as I think it is probably clear to everyone,
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          2  the Board of Education is not a Mayoral agency, and

          3  we have no oversight over them, the Mayor has no

          4  control over the way they do their contracting

          5  business.

          6                 To the extent that this report

          7  reflects contracting problems with the Board of Ed,

          8  it doesn't really have anything to do with the

          9  Administration. Therefore, I am not really sure what

         10  percentage of the contractors they are talking about

         11  are doing that, I am not sure what percentage of the

         12  contracts that they are discussing are like that.

         13  So, it is hard for me to tell exactly the parameters

         14  of the problem they are talking about when I think

         15  the definition is off and that I think that some of

         16  the contracts that they are talking about are

         17  clearly not within the same purview as others.

         18                 I also believe that a lot of the

         19  report is based upon anonymous anecdotal responses

         20  to questions in the survey, it is impossible for me

         21  to respond to them, to those anecdotes, simply

         22  because I don't know what contracts they are talking

         23  about, it's all anonymous.

         24                 Additionally, I can't tell whether or

         25  not these are legitimate concerns raised either by
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          2  my office or an agency. They are simply thrown out

          3  there as problems in the contracting process that

          4  are completely irresponsible on our part, when in

          5  fact there may have been an extremely good reason

          6  why there was a question as to the contractor, why a

          7  contractor was asked to fill out a certain form, it

          8  may have been something required by law, I don't

          9  know.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you

         11  conducted an investigation in regard of the timely

         12  fashion in which the contracts should be issued? Has

         13  your office done that?

         14                 MR. BEST: Well, what we have done is

         15  we have participated with the Administration in

         16  putting a new indicator in the Mayor's Management

         17  Report --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I have not

         19  asked you that question.

         20                 I am very precise in my questions, if

         21  you noticed. Have you conducted an investigation in

         22  regard to the time in which these contracts are

         23  registered or not? Have you or not?

         24                 MR. BEST: The time in which they are

         25  registered we --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And they are

          3  awarded and the money is given to people, had you or

          4  not?

          5                 MR. BEST: What we have done is -- I

          6  consider this to be an appropriate response, and I

          7  believe that I am answering your question. What we

          8  have done is we have focused on the statistics

          9  relating to whether or not contracts are getting

         10  done in a timely manner; that is, are they being

         11  registered retroactively or not.

         12                 We have following up with that, but

         13  working with the agencies for each one that has a

         14  problem, as indicated in those MMR statistics, we

         15  are following up with every one of them to develop a

         16  corrective action plan that will address the issue

         17  to reduce and hopefully eliminate the number of

         18  retroactive contracts that they have.

         19                 So, this is something that we are

         20  taking very seriously, we agree that it is an issue

         21  and we are trying very hard to eliminate the issue.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the answer

         23  is no to my question. You have not conducted an

         24  investigation on the issue that I asked, then that

         25  is the answer to that.
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          2                 The next question, and the last one,

          3  in your conceptualization of how you run government,

          4  you do not have renewal contracts, according to your

          5  testimony here; do you have renewal contracts?

          6                 MR. BEST: There are renewal contracts

          7  and I mentioned in my testimony that there are

          8  renewal contracts. In fact, what I said was that

          9  many people just think about things as simply a

         10  renewal, when in fact even renewals are complicated,

         11  but there are in fact renewals. However, there are

         12  also --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you stop a

         14  minute?

         15                 I am asking you one question and you

         16  said, yes, you do have renewal contracts, you have

         17  them.

         18                 MR. BEST: There are renewal

         19  contracts.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay. Those

         21  renewal contracts that you have, do you treat them

         22  separately and apart? Like, for example, I am very

         23  curious to understand how it is possible that the

         24  contracts for the senior centers are not done

         25  automatically year after year, because as far as I
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          2  know, I don't know of any senior center that one

          3  year to another is eliminated. I believe that the

          4  senior centers are there over time, and over time,

          5  and I hope that you are listening to what I am

          6  saying and not listening to who is talking to you. I

          7  can stop if you want me to.

          8                 MR. BEST: No, I am listening to you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you listen

         10  to me now?

         11                 MR. BEST: I am listening. But I also

         12  want to be informed in my answer.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, I have to

         14  finish saying what I am saying in order for the

         15  gentleman to inform you on your answer. How does he

         16  know what I am going to say unless he reads my mind?

         17  And if he reads my mind, I want to know you. I need

         18  you to teach me that business.

         19                 Again, we have senior centers, senior

         20  centers that exist over time, over time, over time.

         21  Some of them have over 40 years of existence. Every

         22  year they get their contracts. How could you justify

         23  senior centers not to get the contract, 30 percent

         24  of them got the contract according to the

         25  information that you provide. That's right. Then how
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          2  come you justify that those are renewal contracts, I

          3  believe, and if I am mistaken tell me. Those are

          4  renewal contracts or not? Now it is your turn.

          5                 MR. BEST: All right, you have asked

          6  several questions, and I hope that I can answer them

          7  all directly. As far as the last one goes, some

          8  portion of them are renewals, I don't have an exact

          9  percentage with me as to what portion are renewals

         10  and what portion are new contracts, some portion of

         11  the senior center contracts are renewals.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Some of them,

         13  of the senior centers. Not all of them.

         14                 MR. BEST: Not all of them.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you explain

         16  to me why not?

         17                 MR. BEST: Well, sometimes, as a

         18  general matter, if there is a new say RFP put out on

         19  the street, even if an incumbent wins, it is not a

         20  renewal, it's a new contract, so, it wouldn't be

         21  considered a renewal. If you will give me one more

         22  minute. We did look at the Department for the Aging

         23  retroactive contracts in preparation for the

         24  hearing. Of the Department of Aging's retroactive

         25  contracts, approximately a quarter of them were
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          2  renewals. A far larger number were actually Council

          3  or Borough President line item allocations, and

          4  those are not considered renewals. They are new

          5  procurements each year, when the Council and the

          6  Administration jointly agree on a budget, then the

          7  money is put into the budget and that is when the

          8  process begins.

          9                 As I pointed out in my testimony,

         10  there are certain things that could be done to speed

         11  up that process to mitigate the effects of the fact

         12  that the process starts so late and often ends up

         13  with a retroactive contract, but those are not

         14  renewals. Even if it is the same senior center that

         15  the Council or the Borough President had allocated

         16  money to the year before, that is not a renewal,

         17  it's got to go through an entire new procurement.

         18                 To get to your other questions, you

         19  had asked about -- I think what you were getting at,

         20  if I might, is you were getting at why a renewal

         21  would require a number of steps in order for us to

         22  do it, and there are a number of things that we have

         23  to do even on a renewal --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That is not

         25  what I am getting at.
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          2                 MR. BEST: Okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: My only concern

          4  with regard to this is, I mean I don't think that

          5  you should let money go from the taxpayers without

          6  going through the procedures that are required by

          7  law. The only reason I ask you about that is because

          8  you have information on all of those organizations

          9  already on file. You have evaluation, you have

         10  composition of the people that they serve, and you

         11  cannot tell me that you cannot categorize that group

         12  of particular agencies, be it the senior centers or

         13  a day care center, that go through the same nonsense

         14  that this procedure is in place, of people not

         15  getting paid even for the salary that they work for

         16  six and seven months. That's what I am getting at,

         17  that if you have a historic component in your unit

         18  where you accumulate all of this information, and

         19  these contracts are renewal contracts, how could it

         20  take so long?

         21                 MR. BEST: Well, I think we are in

         22  agreement that the agency, even on a renewal, has to

         23  go through all of the things that are required by

         24  law, and it is not -- I would submit that I don't

         25  agree that this is simply a static situation and the
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          2  fact that we have contracted in the past with a

          3  contractor mean that we can simply fly through the

          4  process. The fact is that we have to make

          5  determinations, or the agencies have to make

          6  determinations about these providers, even if they

          7  have already been contracting with them. They have

          8  to look at the latest audits, they have to look at

          9  the performance of the contractor over the last year

         10  or years of the contract, which can change. And as

         11  with Human Services, as with anything else the City

         12  contracts with, that can change over time. We have

         13  to look at whether there is any new information

         14  regarding a responsibility determination that might

         15  have to be dealt with before we can send the

         16  contract along for registration so that the agency

         17  can continue to find the vendor responsible. That

         18  comes up in the Human Services area, just as it does

         19  in every other area the City does business in.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

         21  all of the explanations that you give me. I am not

         22  going to continue asking any more questions. But I

         23  had to say that I have a day care center in my

         24  district, a day care center where you did not sign

         25  the contract, you, the Mayor's Office, with that day

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  care center for over nine months, and the people did

          3  not get paid their salary, which is illegal to do to

          4  people, to put them to work and not pay their

          5  salaries for months and months and months. Nobody

          6  can tell me that you are not able to correct those

          7  problems, particularly when I know that when the

          8  budget modification comes, I see how millions of

          9  dollars are taken from all of those social service

         10  agencies and put it to pay overtime to the Police

         11  Department for Operation Snake, or whatever else you

         12  call it, when you try to put law enforcement in our

         13  community. That is what I think this is about. I

         14  think that you want to have these procedures in

         15  place as is, in order to make sure that you have

         16  some money available when the budget modification

         17  comes to put it where you want to put it in the

         18  beginning and you were not able to do it because we,

         19  in the Council, were against approving that kind of

         20  budget item. That is what I think this is about.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Let me just follow

         23  up on that also. Aren't the agencies supposed to be

         24  doing annual contract evaluations on these

         25  contracts?
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          2                 MR. BEST: Yes, they are.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So, if they are

          4  doing annual evaluations, what happens in the last

          5  six months to nine months? Something changes

          6  drastically that you have to implement all these

          7  delays?

          8                 MR. BEST: Well, I wouldn't call it

          9  implementing delays. I think that things can change

         10  and there are a number of steps, not just the annual

         11  evaluation, that goes into this.

         12                 But one of the things that I would

         13  like to point out is that, as far as the senior

         14  centers go, we have delegated to try to speed up the

         15  process on those, we delegated it to the Agency

         16  Chief Contracting Officers the, in DFTA, the

         17  authority to approve contracts under $2 million,

         18  which is not delegated to all the other Agency Chief

         19  Contracting Officers, because we want to speed those

         20  up for them, but they don't have to come through our

         21  office in the same way.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, but that

         23  doesn't really help the CBOs, the smaller providers.

         24                 MR. BEST: Well, for any of them that

         25  work with DFTA.
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          2                 We have also told the agencies that

          3  in working on their corrective action plans, we want

          4  them to focus on renewals as an area where they

          5  might be able to move things along quickly.

          6                 So this is an area where we

          7  understand there is an issue, and we understand that

          8  there are things that we need to be worked on and we

          9  are going to work with agencies to try to make the

         10  situation better.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, as I

         12  suggested before, not only should you look at the

         13  annual evaluations of various agencies, but maybe if

         14  you know there is a renewal contract coming up six

         15  months ahead of time you start looking at their

         16  performance and fiscal integrity, so that by the

         17  time you get to the actual point of where the

         18  contract can be renewed, you already have in place

         19  if there are any questions or have already answered

         20  those questions, or know if there is going to be a

         21  problem, so that both you and the agency and the

         22  contractor are aware of those problems so we don't

         23  get into these endless delays.

         24                 I mean, I suggest to you that if you

         25  are having problems with one of these agencies, it
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          2  doesn't happen in the last couple of months before

          3  renewals, you probably would be getting some kind of

          4  heads up prior to that time that there are problems,

          5  try and work them out, or determine that you are

          6  going to bring in a new agency, in which case give

          7  them that heads up ahead of time as well, because if

          8  you don't renew those contracts and you have to

          9  bring someone else in, then it occurs to me that

         10  whoever is supposed to be getting those services,

         11  there is going to be a break in those services or

         12  you are going to start out a contract asking a brand

         13  new contractor to basically play catch up and it

         14  will be an even longer delay before they are in

         15  there.

         16                 So, the way the system is now

         17  functioning, almost by definition you are going to

         18  get these delays. So, I think it clearly needs some

         19  changes. And I should point out that this Committee

         20  is also looking at the possibility of making the

         21  prompt payment rules -- the Human Service contracts

         22  would be eligible for them as well.

         23                 Anyway, Council Member Moskowitz.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         25                 I haven't had too much familiarity
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          2  with the Human Service contract problem per se, but

          3  I have had a great deal of experience with Reso A

          4  money and trying to get to the bottom of what

          5  happens to projects going back seven years that have

          6  not been billed, and what I discovered in this

          7  lengthy process is that it is complicated. Why there

          8  was a snafoo is, you know, there are a lot of

          9  different agencies involved, there are a lot of

         10  delays from a lot of different places. But one thing

         11  I was particularly unimpressed with was the agency's

         12  response and knowledge of where the process was. So,

         13  I guess I am a little skeptical, you know, this

         14  notion that there are these corrective action plans

         15  and the agencies are doing evaluation, my experience

         16  was, and let's exempt the Board of Ed, which is its

         17  own can of worms, but even the Department of Aging

         18  or the Department of Design and Construction, they

         19  didn't really know where these things were, and I

         20  know your office spent a certain amount of time

         21  trying to track them down. So, I do think there has

         22  to be more work done on how, you know, what the

         23  tracking system is. That is my comment.

         24                 My more specific questions are, I

         25  want to understand this issue of the -- I have three
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          2  questions, but I want to understand the issue of the

          3  retroactive contract. I understand why Reso A or

          4  Council member items are automatically retroactive

          5  tracts, but can you explain to me, give me some

          6  context for why there are retroactive contracts? I

          7  don't really understand that.

          8                 MR. BEST: Well, that is probably a

          9  question that is, there is as variate an answer to

         10  that as there is the number of procurements that are

         11  retroactive. It's a very complicated process, as you

         12  know, Council Member, to move to the point where an

         13  agency decides that it wants to contract out for a

         14  certain service or good or construction, to the

         15  point where a contract is registered, and there are

         16  a lot of steps in the process, all of which take a

         17  lot of time.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Right.

         19                 MR. BEST: I have listed a number of

         20  them during my testimony, I won't reiterate them

         21  right now, but the fact is that often times if the

         22  solicitation for some reason becomes delayed, that

         23  will impact, and they still want to get the contract

         24  in place for a particular fiscal year, that may

         25  impact on whether or not they can get it registered

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  or not.

          3                 If once they have decided to make an

          4  award there are complicated responsibility issues,

          5  or complicated issues relating to the negotiation of

          6  the terms or the money amount of the contract, that

          7  can delay things.

          8                 Sometimes, I do not mean to suggest

          9  that the agencies can't improve their performance

         10  here, they can. Some of it, some degree may be based

         11  upon the agencies not getting their things done on

         12  time.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I am a lay

         14  person here, I am trying to understand. In other

         15  words, if we want to do it, whatever it is, we want

         16  to fund X, then it becomes retroactive; is that what

         17  you are saying? It's only -- what are the

         18  non-retroactive contracts? Maybe that is a better

         19  question?

         20                 MR. BEST: A non-retroactive contract

         21  would be one that is registered with the Comptroller

         22  before the day that the contract term begins. That

         23  is let's say the contract term is to begin August

         24  1st, it is registered with the Comptroller before

         25  that August 1st. Now, it is not only -- I didn't
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          2  mean to suggest that only Council and Borough

          3  President line item appropriations are retroactive,

          4  if that were the only issue I would have come up

          5  here and said that that were the only issue.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: No, I am

          7  not making any accusations, I am just trying to

          8  understand. It sounds like -- let me ask you this:

          9  Of the contracts, what percentage of them are

         10  retroactive? Are we talking 90 percent or 10

         11  percent? Just ball park.

         12                 MR. BEST: According to the statistics

         13  reported in the MMR, 53 percent of all contracts

         14  were retroactive in Fiscal 2000, and the reason that

         15  we have asked agencies to implement corrective

         16  action plans is precisely because we believe that

         17  that number is far too high.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         19                 Let me ask you this: Who notifies, to

         20  stick with the human service issue, who notifies the

         21  Human Service agency that in the case of a

         22  retroactive contract, how does it work? How does the

         23  anti-asthma community organization discover that it

         24  is going to get $250,000 to fight asthma in a

         25  particular area?
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          2                 MR. BEST: Well, often, and I think

          3  usually, the agency will long before the contract is

          4  registered, before the contract start date, will

          5  have told the contractor that they intend to make an

          6  award to them. Now, I have gone through in my

          7  testimony a number of things that then have to

          8  happen, the negotiation on the terms of the

          9  contract, the various procedural steps that have to

         10  take place.

         11                 It is between those times that things

         12  will become retroactive, so the reason I answer in

         13  this way, it's not as though the contractor doesn't

         14  know that this contract is coming down the road,

         15  they are in the midst usually of negotiating and

         16  working on various procedural steps that need to be

         17  worked on between the agency and the contractor at

         18  the time the contract term begins, they may still be

         19  working on that, and then it will get registered

         20  later, because they haven't worked it out by the

         21  time the contract term begins. So they usually will

         22  know before the contract start date --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But I am

         24  asking a kind of technical question. When they know,

         25  they know because they got a letter from the
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          2  Department of Aging saying or the Department of

          3  Youth --

          4                 MR. BEST: It could be a letter, it

          5  could be telephone calls or meetings, it could be

          6  some combination.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay, let's

          8  assume it's a letter. If it is a letter, does the

          9  text of letter include language about the process

         10  and how long it is going to take and the steps they

         11  need to take, or is that in some other package?

         12                 MR. BEST: I don't think that there is

         13  standard language in the letters about what every

         14  process is. However, generally the agency will tell

         15  them that there is an intent to make an award, but

         16  it is subject to the various processes under the

         17  rules in the Charter that have to be gone through

         18  before a contract can get awarded and negotiation of

         19  specific terms of the contract. So, I don't know

         20  that every one of them is spelled out by every

         21  agency, but there is usually some indication to the

         22  provider, the potential contractor, that in fact

         23  there is going to have to be a process that is gone

         24  through before the contract is signed.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: The reason
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          2  I go down this line of questioning is I think fairly

          3  obvious, that I think a lot of the contractors don't

          4  have, or the Human Service agencies don't have a

          5  sense of how long it is going to take. I am not

          6  saying the process shouldn't be shorter, obviously

          7  it should be shorter and quicker and it is not as

          8  good as it needs to be clearly, but I think it would

          9  be helpful if agencies were instructed to inform the

         10  Human Service organizations, give them a ball park

         11  figure of what the time delay is going to be,

         12  because I have worked for a not-for-profit, it is

         13  very hard to do budgeting when you don't know, and

         14  you can't even get anyone at an agency to return

         15  your phone call to find out how long it is going to

         16  take, it seems like that would be a relatively

         17  simple thing. So, if you would think about that, I

         18  would appreciate it.

         19                 One further question. How do you

         20  track the cause of the delay?

         21                 You hinted in your testimony that the

         22  agency -- sorry, the not-for-profit, the entity

         23  providing the human service may have failed to

         24  provide information, and that is the cause of the

         25  delay, and I have certainly experienced that, but
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          2  also it is clear that at times the agency is at

          3  fault; how do your indicators -- because when I have

          4  contacted ab agency, they can't seem to figure out,

          5  anything about where we are in this process. They

          6  sometimes don't even seem to know that the project

          7  was funded, and I have gotten incorrect information

          8  that the project was rescinded and it wasn't

          9  rescinded, so it seems like a very important issue,

         10  if the delay is caused by the not-for-profit entity,

         11  then we need to know that, and if the delay is

         12  caused by the agency, we need to know that.

         13                 MR. BEST: Well, I think that both

         14  occur, and it is difficult to have indicators,

         15  statistical indicators of that, simply because there

         16  are so many different steps involving action by both

         17  parties, and it varies by procurement, and one step

         18  may be delayed in one procurement, and it may have

         19  to do with the agency not getting it done quickly

         20  enough, or it might have to do with the contractor

         21  not providing information, or it might be some

         22  combination. And then a different step in the

         23  process might be delayed in a different procurement.

         24  So, it is difficult to generalize on these things.

         25                 However, in follow up to your
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          2  previous request that I think about what the

          3  agencies can do to help the contractors get through

          4  the process more efficiently, that's certainly on

          5  our minds, and it is something we will work with the

          6  agencies with, as we help them develop corrective

          7  action plans.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, one

         10  question.

         11                 You said that 53 percent of the

         12  contracts overall are retroactive contracts?

         13                 MR. BEST: Yes, that is according to

         14  the Mayor's Management Report.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And can you tell

         16  me what the percent of human service contracts are

         17  retroactive contracts?

         18                 MR. BEST: We were working on trying

         19  to get some statistics on this, but I am not

         20  confident about them and I would rather just get

         21  back to you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: You can't even do

         23  a ball park?

         24                 MR. BEST: No, I would really rather

         25  not.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Is it safe to

          3  assume it's greater than 53 percent?

          4                 MR. BEST: It probably will be, but,

          5  again, I don't want to hazard a guess as to what the

          6  final stats will be. We will try to come up with

          7  something for the Committee expeditiously.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, put that on

          9  our list of things we are asking for, because,

         10  honestly, it is beginning to look like a no-brainer

         11  that there is a problem with the system. If 53

         12  percent of the overall contracts are retroactive,

         13  and probably a larger amount in human service

         14  contracts, it is beginning to be kind of obvious

         15  that the City seems to be balancing its fiscal books

         16  on the backs of a lot of not-for-profits and

         17  contractors with the City, and I suggest to you that

         18  is an impossible situation. It can't continue. No

         19  wonder we continue to have more and more problems

         20  with contractors with the City in general and human

         21  service contracts in specific, especially when human

         22  service contractors are probably the ones least able

         23  to bear that burden.

         24                 Let me ask a quick question, and then

         25  Council Member Perkins has a quick question.
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          2                 You made repeated references to the

          3  MMR and a corrective action plan. Do you have those,

          4  can you provide us in writing of what those

          5  proposals are, of what that corrective action plan

          6  is?

          7                 MR. BEST: They have not been

          8  finalized yet on the corrective action plan.

          9                 Did you ask about a specific agency?

         10  I'm sorry.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: No, corrective

         12  action plans for specific agencies, Human Service

         13  agencies.

         14                 MR. BEST: We will follow it up with

         15  the Committee.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. And then

         17  also in the past MOC had testified that you were

         18  creating model procurement documents for Human

         19  Service contracts; do you have those yet? Do you

         20  have drafts? Do you have any idea --

         21                 MR. BEST: The model RFP that I

         22  testified about is the document that I believe that

         23  was previously testified about by someone else, and,

         24  yes, we have a model RFP that all of the Human

         25  Service agencies are now using. Once it is
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          2  formalized for all agencies, we will be happy to

          3  provide a copy.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, because we

          5  would like copies of that as well.

          6                 The last questions will be Council

          7  Member Perkins and then we will vote on 165-A.

          8                 Council Member Perkins.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 What percentage of the renewals are

         12  delayed from your estimates?

         13                 The report that we get indicates that

         14  over 80 percent of the contracts are renewals, not

         15  delayed -- what percent of the contracts are

         16  renewals?

         17                 MR. BEST: Councilman, I just want to

         18  make sure I answer your question. Are you asking

         19  what percent of the retroactive contracts were

         20  renewals; is that what you are asking?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The report we

         22  have indicates that agency contracting delays vary

         23  widely. The delays are difficult, considering that

         24  over 80 percent of the contracts are renewals, so

         25  what percent of your contracts are renewals?
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          2                 Since you have 80 percent of your

          3  contracts are renewals, one might assume that since

          4  these are renewals, that much of the information

          5  about these contracts you already have, right?

          6                 MR. BEST: In response to your

          7  question, I don't know what percentage of the

          8  contracts are renewals. I am not sure about the way

          9  that it was defined in the report; however --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, that's

         11  why I want to know.

         12                 MR. BEST: However, I agree with you

         13  that although renewals do have to go through a

         14  lengthier process, and I think it is sometimes

         15  realized that it is something that agencies ought to

         16  be working on to do more expeditiously, since it is

         17  a renewal rather than a procurement, and it is

         18  something that we have asked agencies to concentrate

         19  on in developing corrective action plans, for

         20  exactly the reasons that I think the Committee has

         21  outlined here, it is something that should be

         22  susceptible to a quick corrective action plan, and

         23  we are hoping that that takes place.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: This may be

         25  too simple, but, are renewals processed faster,
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          2  generally speaking, than new contracts?

          3                 I mean, it seemed like you would say

          4  yes.

          5                 MS. BEST: I think that they are, but

          6  I don't have statistics that I can provide to you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It would be

          8  helpful for you to know that they do or that they

          9  don't, because if they don't, then that would

         10  suggest a more serious problem than we would

         11  imagine, right?

         12                 If a renewal takes longer than a new

         13  contract, you know, given a similar set of

         14  circumstances, that would be problematic for you,

         15  wouldn't it?

         16                 MR. BEST: Well, I would think so,

         17  yes.

         18                 My feeling is in fact renewals are

         19  processed more quickly. The fact is, though, that we

         20  have acknowledged that all of these things, renewals

         21  and new procurements and everything else, has to get

         22  done in a manner that reduces the number of

         23  attractive contracts, including renewals

         24  substantially. And we have asked agencies to focus

         25  partly on renewals, as one way that they could
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          2  quickly get their retroactive numbers down, and we

          3  are hoping that that takes place.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Which are the

          5  agencies according to your report, that are failing

          6  with low performance rates?

          7                 MR. BEST: Well, I don't have the MMR

          8  statistics in front of me, but if you go to the MMR,

          9  you will see some numbers that are substantial in

         10  terms of the percentages of the contracts by

         11  particular agencies that are retroactive, and to the

         12  extent that those numbers are high, all of them are

         13  unacceptable to me.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, we are

         15  talking about City agencies.

         16                 MR. BEST: That's correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What is the

         18  worst, would you say -- I mean, I am sure you have a

         19  sense of which ones are -- you know that some are

         20  not doing well, do you have any idea which of those

         21  are the most problematic, just so we can sort of

         22  focus on them and see how they begin to move forward

         23  and whatnot?

         24                 MR. BEST: Well, again, I would point

         25  to the MMR and I would say this, it is difficult for
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          2  me to say that one is worse than another, because in

          3  order to do that analysis, an analysis that I would

          4  be happy to in regard to that, I would take a look

          5  not only at the overall number of retroactive

          6  contracts, but the kind of procurements that they

          7  were, including say member items that I think will

          8  add to an agency's retroactive total. There may be

          9  explanations why one is higher than another, so I am

         10  hesitant to answer questions.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But you do

         12  know which are the ones that have low performance

         13  rates?

         14                 MR. BEST: That's correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do you have

         16  an idea of how many there are?

         17                 MR. BEST: Again, I would point to the

         18  MMR. Every one of them, every single one of them

         19  that has a high percentage of retroactive contracts

         20  I find unacceptable, and I have every one of those

         21  Commissioners develop --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You can say

         23  for now, for the record, which ones or how many

         24  there are.

         25                 MR. BEST: I do not have the MMR in
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          2  front of me, sir, no.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I am sorry, I

          4  wasn't going to go on again, but coincidentally --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That's all

          6  right, I won't feel interrupted.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, just to

          8  follow up on Council Member Perkins' very good

          9  questions, I do have the MMR for Fiscal 2000 in

         10  front of me, and you might be amazed that under H,

         11  Agency Procurement, the contracts, retroactive

         12  contracts, the contracts with the start date before

         13  the registration, just looking at the Human Service

         14  contracts, let me give you an idea:

         15                 The Department of Health, 97 percent.

         16  Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and

         17  Alcoholism Services, 96. Human Service

         18  Administration, 89. Administration for Children's

         19  Services, 96. Department of Homeless Services, 96.

         20  Department of Employment, 62 contracts, 100 percent

         21  are retroactive. Department of Youth and Community

         22  Development, 99 percent. The one that is the best is

         23  the one that you mentioned where the Department of

         24  Aging actually has the $2 million cutoff, they are

         25  only 70 percent retroactive.
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          2                 I suggest to you, you have a huge

          3  problem here, and we have got to do something about

          4  this, this is appalling.

          5                 MR. BEST: A couple of things. One is

          6  that --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Is this new

          8  information to you?

          9                 MR. BEST: No.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: They prepared this

         11  document, so I can't imagine it is new information.

         12                 MR. BEST: First off, just let me

         13  clarify that it is not just the Department for the

         14  Aging that has the $2 million renewal delegation,

         15  but all Human Services agencies.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, then you

         17  have another problem there as well.

         18                 MR. BEST: But I will say that the

         19  reason this is in the MMR is precisely because it is

         20  the time of thing that is a problem, and that is why

         21  we have asked every one of those commissioners to

         22  come up with a corrective action plan.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. And as I

         24  pointed out before, actually we did ask for these in

         25  this Committee several years ago, we also pushed for
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          2  the prompt payment in this Committee. So, we thank

          3  you for listening to us, but now, clearly, the areas

          4  we were concerned about, there is a real problem.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask a

          6  question, Madam Chair. Just a follow-up and

          7  conclusion on this particular thing.

          8                 This concern has been going on for

          9  some time now, how long are you familiar with it?

         10                 MR. BEST: Well, I have been Director

         11  of the Mayor's Office of Contracts since November

         12  20th, so I was not in the procurement area before

         13  that, it wasn't a problem that I focused on. So, it

         14  is only since I got there.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Are any of

         16  your colleagues here longer than you that can give

         17  us some history of how long this has been going on

         18  with this Administration?

         19                 MR. BEST: I would prefer to answer

         20  the question, and I will answer it this way.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Maybe you can

         22  --

         23                 MR. BEST: I prefer to answer the

         24  question, Council Member, and I will answer it this

         25  way. This is something that our office took very
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          2  seriously before. It is the reason that the Mayor,

          3  for the Fiscal 2000 Mayor's Management Report put

          4  this indicator in there, because we recognized the

          5  problem at the Mayor's Office of Contracts, and

          6  because it was one that we considered serious. The

          7  Mayor also considered it serious and decided to

          8  publicly put it out there in the MMR to focus agency

          9  attention on solving the problem.

         10                 Since I have gotten there, I have

         11  asked agencies, every single one of them with a poor

         12  performance rate, I have asked to come up with a

         13  corrective action plan and we are in the process of

         14  getting those done.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: May I suggest

         16  something? Because I recognize that you are sort of

         17  the new kid on the block so-to-speak, and you are

         18  inheriting this very poor performance, and I will

         19  give you the benefit of the doubt that your

         20  intentions are good in terms of trying to identify

         21  and deal with it very seriously.

         22                 The problem has been going on for

         23  over six years in this Administration, at least it

         24  is being addressed for that long in terms of this

         25  Committee, but I know the groups have been bringing
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          2  these issues to our attention, you know, for the

          3  longest time under this administration.

          4                 I would suggest to you that toward

          5  your success, in terms of credibility, that it would

          6  be helpful if you are more forthcoming. And I only

          7  say that because you knew these groups that we were

          8  concerned about, and it is not helpful if the Chair

          9  has to go through the MMR and put it on the record,

         10  it is more helpful when you are forthcoming about

         11  it. It's up to you, I am just suggesting a way in

         12  which you can be more successful and credible in

         13  your efforts, because it is the hiding of these

         14  facts and the hiding of these figures that is

         15  crippling the process and that is creating the

         16  credibility gap that we are exploring right now.

         17                 Let me just ask one other question,

         18  two other questions. You make some suggestions about

         19  some ways in which some improvements can be made and

         20  in that regard you mention that the contractor

         21  community can play a constructive role in this

         22  effort, and in your testimony you don't make

         23  reference to that effort or you suggestions in that

         24  regard. You do make reference to what the Council

         25  can do and I will get to that later, but what did
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          2  you have in mind that you thought the contractor

          3  community can do?

          4                 MR. BEST: Well, as I said, I think

          5  that the issues here involve the process, that the

          6  difficult and the complicated nature of the process,

          7  I think they involve the way that the agencies have

          8  been doing things. I think that they also involve

          9  what the contractors have done, and I think that

         10  they involve matters, as I mentioned in my testimony

         11  -- and I will get to that in a moment, Councilman

         12  -- and I also think they involve matters that the

         13  Council will focus on to make the law better for the

         14  agencies.

         15                 As far as what the contractors can

         16  do, I mentioned in my testimony that I think that

         17  one of the things that the Council and the

         18  contractors can do in unison would be to work on the

         19  way that the contractors are involved, you know, get

         20  information to the agencies an get involved in the

         21  process for line item appropriation, rather than

         22  think -- and this point carries over to some degree

         23  to all procurements. That is, rather than think that

         24  an award is coming, that you have been told as a

         25  contractor that an agency intends to make you an
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          2  award, that is the beginning of the process in a lot

          3  of ways. At that point you have to cooperate and

          4  provide a lot of information, some of which is

          5  complicated, and some of the forms are lengthy that

          6  have to be filled out, and there are a lot of

          7  negotiations that have to go on.

          8                 I know from the report that some

          9  contractors believe that they provide the

         10  information right away and some of them do, some of

         11  them, on some procurements, it doesn't go as well.

         12  There is a variance in the response we get from

         13  various different contractors, as well as a variance

         14  in the way that the agencies do it.

         15                 So, I think it is a matter of

         16  everybody in the process jointly trying to work the

         17  various cumbersome steps through more efficiently

         18  and more quickly, and that I think is the most

         19  constructive role the contractors can play.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The sense

         21  that I get, and forgive me if I am wrong, is that,

         22  putting aside for the moment the so-called what you

         23  call line item discretionary money that the Council

         24  appropriates to various organizations, but looking

         25  at other larger group of contractors, the sense I
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          2  get is that they are anxious to expedite the

          3  paperwork that is necessary, because after all, they

          4  are the ones that need the money, and the sense that

          5  I get is that, they are at a loss as to what

          6  additional they could do.

          7                 I know that there has been some

          8  meetings between some of them and your agency to try

          9  to identify ways to move through the process, which

         10  I think is very proactive and positive, but I was

         11  just hoping that maybe you had some additional

         12  thoughts, other than what has been taking place up

         13  to now, that maybe they have not paid attention to;

         14  do you understand what I am saying?

         15                 MR. BEST: I do understand what you

         16  are saying, and, again, I think I have said in

         17  response to a couple of questions, it's difficult to

         18  quantify some of the things that slow things down. A

         19  lot of the process involves mundane details, forms

         20  that have to be filled out and reviewed by various

         21  agencies, and these things are required by law,

         22  every one of them slows down the process.

         23                 So, to the extent, and some

         24  contractors are very good about getting the stuff

         25  back, some are less good. Some agencies are good at
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          2  processing them, some are less good.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, for

          4  instance, when you have an agency, when you have a

          5  contractor, since you have so many renewals, you

          6  know, when you find one that is, do you find some

          7  that are consistently not following the most

          8  expeditious approach to contracting with you?

          9  Because if so, then what do you do to bring them up

         10  to the next level that would make it better for

         11  everyone?

         12                 MR. BEST: Well, I think that the

         13  agencies that the Chair pointed out as reported in

         14  the MMR, I was not trying to hide that, that is a

         15  public document which I was referring, the

         16  Administration is the entity that made that

         17  information public, and the reason I refer to it is

         18  because the public document is easily accessible,

         19  every one of those with a poor performance rate I

         20  think is not doing this as well as they could. That

         21  is not to say that everything about this --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: No, I am not

         23  talking about the agencies, I am talking about the

         24  contractors.

         25                 MR. BEST: Oh, I see what you mean.
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          2                 Well, that is something we can look

          3  at in conjunction with agencies. I do not have a

          4  sense of particular contractors who had issues with

          5  this. I do hear anecdotally from my staff sometimes

          6  when procurements are going through that an agency

          7  is having a difficult time negotiating something

          8  with a contractor, or an agency is having a

          9  difficult time getting information or a VENDEX

         10  questionnaire back from a contractor, but I don't

         11  have any systematic information in that regard.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: See, I guess

         13  what I am trying to get at is, if a contractor is,

         14  for lack of a better word, at fault, and so many of

         15  them are renewals, maybe there are some patterns or

         16  constant areas where they are falling short that

         17  need to be addressed and I thought maybe we could

         18  look at that, if that is in fact the circumstance

         19  that we are having, but I don't get that that is the

         20  circumstance that we are having, in a large enough

         21  amount to bother to look at.

         22                 MR. BEST: Well, we can take a look at

         23  it. We can take a look at it in the context of what

         24  we are trying to do with the agencies. But as I have

         25  said, as far as renewals go, it is one of the places
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          2  we have asked agencies to take a very hard look at

          3  how they do it because, as the Committee has pointed

          4  out, this is a place that would seem to be right for

          5  improvement.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Finally, what

          7  percent of the problem is represented by the current

          8  small purchase dollar limits? You identify that as

          9  one of the problems that is holding up the

         10  processing, and I am just wondering, since you make

         11  so much of it, you know, what percentage does that

         12  represent? So that if there was a change it would

         13  make some sort of dramatic difference.

         14                 MR. BEST: Again, you have asked an

         15  interesting but difficult to answer question, so I

         16  am going to do the best I can, Council Member

         17  Perkins.

         18                 A very large percentage of DYCD's

         19  contracts, I don't know the exact number, but it is

         20  a very large percentage, are under $100,000. If the

         21  small purchase limits were in effect, were raised to

         22  $100,000, all of them could be done as small

         23  purchases. Getting rid of all of the steps in the

         24  process that I mentioned in my testimony and

         25  speeding it up.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            72

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 I believe that one of my predecessors

          3  testified some time ago that she estimated that a

          4  small purchase takes about two weeks to process.

          5  That is a lot shorter than a renewal, it is a lot

          6  shorter than a new procurement, it is a lot shorter

          7  than everything else. And DYCD, for one, would be

          8  tremendously helped just on that front.

          9                 I would also point out, though, that

         10  it is not just a matter, and this is why it is a

         11  difficult question to quantify, but it is not just a

         12  matter of how many contracts that are currently done

         13  as contracts, it could be done as small purchases if

         14  we raised the small purchase limits.

         15                 It is also the fact that, as I have

         16  said, this is a complicated process, it takes a lot

         17  of resources on the contractor's side and it takes a

         18  lot of resources on the agency's side to get a

         19  procurement through. If we could free up a lot of

         20  those resources by doing small purchases, it would

         21  give the agencies and the oversights more time to

         22  spend on the larger ones which would then speed

         23  those up, so every part of the process would benefit

         24  tremendously, I think, from raising the small

         25  purchase limits.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          3  very much, and, you know, I wish you success. I want

          4  to also take a moment to thank, acknowledge and

          5  thank City Project for the extraordinary work that

          6  they have been doing in an area that has not only

          7  informed us in the City Council but has informed

          8  this City in general. Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, thank

         10  you.

         11                 One last bit of information we would

         12  like you to get to us, when you were talking about a

         13  number of the Human Service contracts and why they

         14  don't come under the Prompt Payment Rules was

         15  because many of them get prepayment. I would

         16  appreciate it if you could get us a list of those

         17  groups that get prepayments, when you are getting us

         18  all of the other information we have asked for.

         19                 MR. BEST: I will see what I can do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Anyway, thank you

         21  very much. It has been very enlightening.

         22                 Right now we are going to do a little

         23  bit of housekeeping and then we will ask the other

         24  groups who want to testify on.

         25                 We want to do the vote on Intro. No.
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          2  165-A. Just to give you a little bit of information,

          3  this is a bill we have been working on for about a

          4  year, actually over a year. Intro. 165-A requires

          5  that vendors under contracts with the City of New

          6  York refrain from any unlawful discriminatory

          7  practices as defined and pursuant to the terms of

          8  the City Human Rights Law codified in Title VIII of

          9  the Administrative Code.

         10                 On June 14th, 1999, and on October

         11  26th, 1999, this Committee held hearings on Intro.

         12  165, received testimony from the Mayor's Office of

         13  Contracts and several advocacy groups. This

         14  Committee has amended the bill in order to address

         15  the concerns and questions that Intro. 165 raised.

         16  Intro. 165-A, which requires that all contractors

         17  doing business with the City without regard to the

         18  dollar amount, shall not engage in any unlawful

         19  discriminatory practices as defined and pursuant to

         20  the terms of Title VIII of the Administrative Code,

         21  that every contract in excess of $50,000 shall

         22  contain a provision or provisions detailing the

         23  requirements of this section, that upon receiving a

         24  complaint at his or her own instance, the

         25  Commissioner of Business Services acting pursuant to
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          2  Section 1305 of the Charter, may conduct such

          3  investigation as may be necessary to determine

          4  whether contracts or subcontractors are in

          5  compliance with the Equal Employment Opportunity

          6  requirements of federal, state, local laws and

          7  Executive Orders.

          8                 If the Commissioner has reason to

          9  believe that a contractor or a subcontractor is not

         10  in compliance with the provisions of this section,

         11  of where there has been a final adjudication by the

         12  Human Rights Commission or a court of competent

         13  jurisdiction, i.e., of private right of action, that

         14  a contractor has violated one or more of the

         15  provisions of Title VIII of the Administrative Code,

         16  as to its work subject, to its contract with the

         17  contracting agency, the Commissioner of Business

         18  Services shall seek the contractors or

         19  subcontractors agreement to adopt and adhere to an

         20  employment program designed to ensure equal

         21  employment opportunity and may, in addition,

         22  recommend to the contracting agency that payments to

         23  the contractor be suspending, pending a

         24  determination of the contractor's compliance with

         25  such requirements.
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          2                 If the contractor or subcontractor

          3  does not agree to adopt such a program, the

          4  Commissioner shall make a determination as to the

          5  contractor or subcontractor's incompliance with the

          6  provision of this section, shall notify the head of

          7  the contracting agency of such determination, and

          8  any sanctions including withholding of payment,

          9  imposition of employment program, finding the

         10  contractor to be in default, cancellation of the

         11  contract or other sanction or remedy provided by law

         12  or by contract, which the Commissioner believes

         13  should be imposed.

         14                 The head of the contracting agency

         15  shall impose such sanction unless he or she notifies

         16  the Commissioner in writing that the agency head

         17  does not agree with the recommendations, in which

         18  case the Commissioner or head of the contracting

         19  agency so jointly determined any sanction to be

         20  imposed.

         21                 Nothing in this section shall be

         22  construed to limit the City's authority to cancel or

         23  terminate a contract, deny or withdraw approval to

         24  perform a subcontract to provide supplies, issue a

         25  non-responsibility finding, issue a
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          2  non-responsiveness finding, deny a person or entity

          3  prequalification, or otherwise deny a person or

          4  entity City business, that Intro. 165-a shall take

          5  effect 45 days after its enactment into law and

          6  shall apply to contracts for which bid proposals are

          7  first solicited after such effective date.

          8                 What all that means is, that

          9  essentially what 165-A does is require that every

         10  contract in the City over $50,000 reference the City

         11  Human Rights Law. Prior to this time they only

         12  referenced Executive Order 50, and under Executive

         13  Order 50 several categories of persons were not

         14  covered, including gay, lesbians, and transgendered

         15  and bisexual individuals. Also they skipped alienage

         16  and nationality. Those will all be picked up, and

         17  even though it may not have sounded like it, what we

         18  actually do in this bill is codify how one brings a

         19  discrimination suit against the City.

         20                 Having said that, I believe we have

         21  one person who has asked to testify, Andrea Batista

         22  Schlesinger, from the Bronx Borough President's

         23  Office, and then we are going to be voting on 165-A.

         24  Then we will go back to continue the hearing on the

         25  Human Service contract.
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          2                 Can we have a Sergeant-at-arms,

          3  please?

          4                 MS. BATISTA SCHLESINGER: My name is

          5  Andrea Batista Schlesinger.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Just one question.

          7  You have to raise your right hand.

          8                 MS. BATISTA SCHLESINGER: Oh, right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And do you swear

         10  to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

         11  the truth?

         12                 MS. BATISTA SCHLESINGER: Yes, I do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, please

         14  proceed.

         15                 MS. BATISTA SCHLESINGER: My name is

         16  Andrea Batista Schlesinger. I am Bronx Borough

         17  President Fernando Ferrer's liaison for the gay and

         18  lesbian community. He wished to be here today but

         19  could not, so I will read this testimony on his

         20  behalf.

         21                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         22  comment on Intro. No. 165-A. I have been dedicated

         23  through the course of my career to the cause of

         24  human and civil rights. This is so because even in

         25  the Year 2001, even in one of the greatest cities on

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            79

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  the face of the earth, each day bears witness to an

          3  ever-rising toll of criminal and human rights

          4  atrocities. That is why I have fought long and hard

          5  for city laws that protect against acts of

          6  discrimination, that is why I fought for Hate Crimes

          7  Law. That's why it makes sense to apply the City's

          8  Human Rights Law to cover contractors doing business

          9  with the City.

         10                 The well being of the City of New

         11  York depends on the elimination of bias, prejudice

         12  and unlawful discrimination, it has no place in the

         13  public or private life of this great City.

         14  Legislation to require contractors doing business

         15  with the City to comply with Title VII with the

         16  City's Human Rights Law, would assist and supplement

         17  existing efforts, ban unlawful discrimination, as

         18  covered in City and State Human Rights Law, and give

         19  further strength to the City policy as embodied in

         20  the City's Administrative Code.

         21                 In addition to the substance of this

         22  proposed law, the proposed code change sets a tone

         23  and sends a general message about the standards of

         24  conduct society expects of its members and their

         25  dealing with each other.
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          2                 While I strongly support efforts to

          3  ban discriminatory practices and induce tolerant and

          4  respectful behavior, it remains equally important to

          5  ensure that anybody charged with enforcing existing

          6  law and proposer forms be given the resources

          7  necessary to enforce the law and carry out

          8  sanctions.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         11  much. We will now be voting on 165-A, unless there

         12  are other witnesses on this.

         13                 Okay, Mr. Cherry.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Freed.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I am very glad to

         16  vote aye on this very important piece of

         17  legislation.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: White.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: I vote aye.

         20  And, Madam Chair, I would like to be named as one of

         21  the sponsors.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Espada.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Lopez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Unequivocally
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          2  yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Perkins.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes. And

          5  please, Madam Chair, list me amongst the prime

          6  sponsors.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Quinn.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I vote aye, and

         10  I want to, just for the record, thank the Chair for

         11  moving this bill forward, and for spending so much

         12  time trying to iron out any differences that there

         13  might have been with the Administration and that

         14  said, I vote aye with the strongest recommendation

         15  possible to the Administration that this bill should

         16  be signed in the most timely fashion into law, that

         17  it is a very common sense bill, that one think would

         18  track with the position that the Mayor has said that

         19  he has and holds relating to Human Rights.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Fiala.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I vote aye.

         24                 Let me just add that I think it is

         25  important to note that to the extent the government
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          2  can use its moral authority and the weight that it

          3  has to root out discrimination and bigotry, we

          4  should.

          5                 It is unfortunate that we need to

          6  take steps like this, but it reminds us that there

          7  remains in our world today divisions among people

          8  where there shouldn't be divisions. So it is my hope

          9  that this will take us one step closer toward

         10  breaking down those lines and those barriers.

         11                 And let me commend you, Council

         12  Member Freed and Council Member Lopez and Quinn, of

         13  your leadership on this issue.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Boyland.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I vote aye.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Council

         18  Member Moskowitz was here.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

         20  at eight in the affirmative, none in the negative

         21  with no abstentions, and the vote is still open.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         23  much. I want to thank the Committee, and I, too,

         24  would like to make a plea to the Administration that

         25  they reconsider this and that the Mayor sign this
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          2  bill.

          3                 But if by any chance he doesn't, we

          4  intend nevertheless to make this the law of the

          5  City. Okay, now we are going back to Human Service

          6  contracts, and the next witness will be Edward

          7  Fitzpatrick, Jr., he is the First Deputy

          8  Comptroller, and speaking on behalf of the

          9  Comptroller I expect.

         10                 Okay, when you are ready, if you can

         11  raise your right hand.

         12                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MR. FITZPATRICK: I do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Again, state your name and position

         18  for the record, and please proceed.

         19                 MR. FITZPATRICK: Yes. My name is Ed

         20  Fitzpatrick and I am First Deputy Comptroller in

         21  Comptroller Hevesi's Office.

         22                 Good morning, Chairwoman Freed, and

         23  members of the Committee on Contracts. Thank you for

         24  inviting our office to testify on the problem of

         25  payment delays to Human Service providers. The
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          2  Comptroller's office, through its contract

          3  registration payment and audit functions, is well

          4  aware that City agencies frequently request

          5  contractors to commence work under a contract before

          6  it is registered.

          7                 This practice is particularly

          8  prevalent with Human Service contracts, where

          9  continuity and continuation of services without

         10  interruption is vital.

         11                 In addition, the practice of

         12  commencing work prior to contract registration is

         13  the primary cause of payment delays on human service

         14  contracts, because City agencies cannot make

         15  payments on a contract until it is registered.

         16                 On December 30th, 1998, Comptroller

         17  Hevesi wrote to you about this problem. He pointed

         18  out that human service contracts were submitted to

         19  our office for registration, an average of 74 days

         20  after their start date. The situation has not

         21  improved.

         22                 In Fiscal Year 2000, 74 percent of

         23  human service contracts was submitted for

         24  registration 30 days or longer after the contract

         25  start date. Nineteen percent of the Fiscal Year 2000
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          2  Human Service contracts were submitted for

          3  registration six months or longer after their start

          4  date.

          5                 Last summer, the Comptroller's staff

          6  met with the UJA Federation of New York to discuss

          7  the problem of payment delays on human service

          8  contracts. The issues raised by UJA were very

          9  similar to those raised by City Project and other

         10  human service providers, who frequently contact our

         11  office to help in getting their contracts

         12  registered, so that payment can be made.

         13                 The Comptroller's office has taken

         14  steps to health providers, including working with

         15  City agencies, to identify providers whose

         16  situations are most dire, so that their contract

         17  reviews can be prioritized; however, these steps do

         18  not address the underlying problem.

         19                 Under the contracting and payment

         20  system, there are little, if any, negative

         21  consequences to an agency that fails to process a

         22  contract in a timely manner. Instead, the burden

         23  falls primarily on the contractor in the following

         24  ways:

         25                 Additional costs incurred from having

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  to borrow money, delayed pay checks of layoffs of

          3  provider's staff, and a reduction in services to

          4  human service clients.

          5                 To address this imbalance, the

          6  Comptroller's Office will be proposing an amendment

          7  to the City's Procurement Policy Board rules which

          8  will provide vendors who experience payment delays

          9  because of contract registration delays, eligibility

         10  for prompt payment interest.

         11                 In other words, we would like to

         12  extend the City's Prompt Payment rules, which cover

         13  payment delays on registered contracts to cover

         14  payment delays caused by the late submission of a

         15  contract for registration.

         16                 This change will create an incentive

         17  for agencies to better manage their contracting

         18  processes, since interest will be paid from their

         19  budget. Our proposal would cover all types of

         20  contracts, because other contractors experience

         21  problems similar to those raised by human service

         22  contractors.

         23                 In early December the Comptroller's

         24  Office solicited comments on its proposal from the

         25  human service umbrella organizations, representing
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          2  most human service providers in New York City, and

          3  from umbrella organizations in other service areas.

          4  We are reviewing those comments and intend to submit

          5  our proposal to the Procurement Policy Board for a

          6  vote into CAPA, the City's formal rule-making

          7  process, in the near future.

          8                 I would like to make two important

          9  final points. First, by offering this proposal, the

         10  Comptroller's Office is in no way advocating or

         11  supporting the practice of having contractors start

         12  work prior to contract registration. The proposal

         13  clearly states that it does not authorize or require

         14  payments of interest on payments for goods or

         15  services other than under a registered contract.

         16                 A supplier providing services without

         17  a registered contract does so at its own risk. This

         18  is the case under current law, and will continue to

         19  be the case if the PPB adopt our proposal.

         20                 Second, the Comptroller's Office is

         21  aware of the potential fiscal impact of prompt

         22  contracting interest, but we must also be clear that

         23  there need not be a significant impact.

         24                 The ultimate goal of this proposal is

         25  to have agencies better anticipate their contracting
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          2  needs and to improve their contract processing time

          3  so that they will pay little, if any prompt

          4  contracting interest. If this occurs, and there is

          5  no reason to see why it should not, our proposal

          6  will have no significant fiscal impact and will do

          7  much to alleviate the toll, both financial and

          8  otherwise, that payment delays cause the providers

          9  of these important human services.

         10                 We look forward to working with the

         11  Council, to their support on the Prompt Contracting

         12  proposal, and I will be happy to answer any

         13  questions. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         15  much. I am glad to see we are on the same page about

         16  all of this. And I don't know if anyone stayed from

         17  MOC, I said that we will get our past requests to

         18  have this indicator included in the Mayor's

         19  Management Report and I do want to thank the

         20  Comptroller's Office for their good work in this as

         21  well.

         22                 As far as the CAPA rule you were

         23  talking about, do you expect support from the

         24  Mayor's Office, from the City?

         25                 MR. FITZPATRICK: The last I heard,
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          2  and that was last week, I don't know that they have

          3  taken the position yet, so I don't know how they

          4  might go on now.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. Because

          6  obviously we are very interested in that, and we

          7  will work with you on that, and if we have to take

          8  any action, either reso or intro, we will be more

          9  than happy to support you on that, because it needs

         10  to be done.

         11                 I mean, having sat through this

         12  hearing, the argument by the Administration that the

         13  reason the Prompt Payment process does not apply to

         14  human service contracts is because people get

         15  prepayments and yet overwhelmingly when you look at

         16  100 percent of some contracts, being retroactive, I

         17  would like to know who these prepayment people were,

         18  and hopefully we will get that information after

         19  today.

         20                 How much of this -- I am just looking

         21  at some of the questions we had here as far as

         22  OASAS, I am wondering if the -- in April of 1999,

         23  Steve Neuman, the Deputy Comptroller, offered

         24  several recommendations for making the contracting

         25  process more efficient and effective, and we are
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          2  wondering if these recommendations have been

          3  implemented?

          4                 Some of the things they were looking

          5  at was the Comptroller possibly making OASAS

          6  available to the Board of Ed and the human service

          7  agencies, to give immediate access to file

          8  information. Another one was, has the Comptroller

          9  been sending monthly reports to agencies defining

         10  these problems? And has the Comptroller been sending

         11  to MOC and agencies monthly printouts of these

         12  contracts? I think these are some of the things we

         13  discussed at the time.

         14                 MR. FITZPATRICK: As to the Board of

         15  Education's access to OASAS, we do have a memorandum

         16  of understanding with the Board to provide them

         17  access. I don't know where that is, in terms of the

         18  technical side of actually making it happen, but the

         19  agreement is there and the intention and I can find

         20  out the status of actually putting in the

         21  connections and those types of things.

         22                 In terms of granting access to

         23  entities outside of City government, part of that

         24  would require, I would think, perhaps the use of the

         25  Internet, some web enabling of the OASAS application
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          2  so that an extract file could be created so that

          3  outside vendors could look at the status of their

          4  particular contract.

          5                 Discussions have occurred around that

          6  issue on the E Government Task Force and within our

          7  own agency we have had some vendors in, you know,

          8  part of that is the budgetary issue, obviously. We

          9  don't have an IT budget to simply create that kind

         10  of interface, but we are certainly in favor of doing

         11  so.

         12                 In terms of the reports going to MOC,

         13  the monthly reports, we do share monthly reports

         14  with the Board of Education. We haven't started with

         15  other agencies, and I am told that the OASAS access

         16  currently exists for the Board of Education.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

         18                 And thank you very much for your

         19  testimony, and we look forward to working with you.

         20                 MR. FITZPATRICK: Thanks very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: The last little

         22  bit of housekeeping, Council Member Moskowitz.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Moskowitz.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I vote aye.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote is now

          3  closed at nine in the affirmative, none in the

          4  negative and no abstentions, and the item is

          5  adopted. Please sign the reports.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Okay, the next witnesses are Lynne

          9  Weikart and Glenn Pasanen from City Project, and let

         10  me just say that we very much thank you for your

         11  efforts in this in bringing this out and we look

         12  forward to continuing working with you on all of

         13  your fine efforts.

         14                 Okay, if you both could raise your

         15  right hands.

         16                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         17  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         18                 MS. WEIKART: I do.

         19                 MR. PASANEN: I do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And please

         21  proceed.

         22                 MS. WEIKART: Good morning, Madam

         23  Chair, and members of the Contracts Committee. I am

         24  Lynne Weikart, Executive Director of City Project,

         25  which is a nonpartisan public policy organization
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          2  that monitors City budgets, and for the past two

          3  years City contracting procedures. We take no

          4  government money.

          5                 With me is Glenn Pasanen, Associate

          6  Director.

          7                 First of all, we thank you for the

          8  chance to testify at this important hearing. In

          9  December of 2000, we released a survey of human

         10  service contractors that focused on the question

         11  before the Committee today: What is the extent and

         12  impact of payment delays to these service providers?

         13                 The answer to the question lies in

         14  our reports titled, delay, confusion and financial

         15  burdens for CBOs, the failures of New York City's

         16  procurement policy.

         17                 A copy of the full report is attached

         18  to our testimony and today I will only touch in sum

         19  the highlights of our findings. But before I do

         20  that, I want to underscore one particularly

         21  disturbing problem noted in the report. Almost

         22  universally human service contractors are afraid to

         23  say how terrible the City's procurement policy is.

         24  Put simply, they fear that Mayor Giuliani's

         25  Administration will punish them if they speak up at

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  a public forum like this hearing.

          3                 We told many groups about this

          4  hearing, but they said to us that they were afraid

          5  to come. Two organizations, for example, are still

          6  awaiting their first payment for contracts that were

          7  supposed to start July 1st, 2000, and here it is the

          8  middle of January.

          9                 Although they are both well

         10  established groups that have been contracting with

         11  the City for years, they thought testifying would

         12  further jeopardize their tenuous status.

         13                 A woman representing another

         14  organization asked if she could testify wearing a

         15  bag over her head. We have heard the same fear

         16  expressed by contractors in preparing the first

         17  issue of our newsletter Focus on Contracting. Most

         18  of our news stories are anonymously referenced. We

         19  could not publish other stories at all because the

         20  details themselves would identify the organization.

         21                 We have been monitoring City

         22  contracts for over two years now, and it has been

         23  essentially the same story over and over - delayed

         24  payments, forced borrowings, compromised services

         25  and fears about Mayoral reprisals.
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          2                 In other words, the problems cited in

          3  our survey report are deeply institutionalized, and

          4  because of the Administration's intimidation factor,

          5  largely unknown to the general public, that is why

          6  today's hearing is so important.

          7                 Now, let me note a few survey results

          8  from the 77 contractors who gave us information on

          9  152 contracts, worth about 75 million. I will also

         10  make some suggestions about common sense reforms.

         11                 The average time between award of a

         12  contract and first payment to CBOs is almost four

         13  months, and over 25 percent of the cases it is five

         14  or more months, in one case it was 12 months.

         15                 To their credit, 96 percent of CBOs

         16  reported that they began services on time, in spite

         17  of the payment delays. These community groups are in

         18  effect subsidizing the City's failures.

         19                 Fifty-two percent of the groups took

         20  out loans, the interest costs are not reimbursable.

         21                 This is unconscionable. There needs

         22  to be a new law, procurement policy rule, that at

         23  least makes such costs reimbursed.

         24                 Over 80 percent of these contracts

         25  are renewals. In a technologically advanced world,
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          2  City managers should be able to handle renewal

          3  contracts in a more timely and efficient manner.

          4                 Contract delays vary dramatically by

          5  agency, suggesting that Mayoral management is badly

          6  decentralized, ad hoc and basically unaccountable.

          7  The promise of the new procurement system that stems

          8  the 1989 City Charter revision is that contracting

          9  is an executive function. The premise may be sound,

         10  but on record the Mayor flunked.

         11                 Communications between contractors

         12  and agencies are sometimes positive, but too often

         13  confusing and frustrating. Again, given available

         14  technology there should be some kind of public

         15  tracking system, that allows contractors to know

         16  where they are in the procurement system and what

         17  time frame is likely.

         18                 Our survey also suggests the Mayor's

         19  most recent initiative in contracting. The use of a

         20  negotiated acquisition, promises to introduce a

         21  whole new set of problems and unlevel playing fields

         22  for contractors, frustrating performance standards,

         23  wider use of subcontracting, less administrative

         24  oversight, and generally a less democratic process.

         25                 We hope the Council will continue to
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          2  monitor the use of negotiated acquisition.

          3                 In sum, it is not a pretty picture.

          4  Human service contractors, especially smaller and

          5  emerging contractors, are at the mercy of the

          6  system, it does not serve them well. More

          7  importantly, it does not serve the New Yorkers who

          8  depend on those contracts for their services.

          9                 After all, it is ultimately the

         10  clients who pay the bill for the City's

         11  mismanagement, miscommunication and in-your-face

         12  response to criticism.

         13                 Thank you, again, to this Committee

         14  for making this issue a priority and we would be

         15  pleased to work closely with you in reforming an

         16  unaccountable system.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: The

         18  Committee has some questions and I also have a few

         19  of my own, but I first want to thank you for

         20  undertaking this work and it is obviously critically

         21  important, and I wish, by the way, that we had the

         22  Board of Ed people here, too, because we always have

         23  this problem with you contracting, and MOC is not

         24  responsible, so we can't ask the full range of

         25  questions, which is unfortunate, and perhaps next

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  time around we can focus around that.

          3                 I know the Committee had developed a

          4  series of questions, and let me just go over a

          5  couple of them.

          6                 Your 1998 survey revealed the

          7  two-track contracting process, one for Mayoral

          8  contracts and one for City Council contracts.  Did

          9  your recent work uncover evidence of a two-track

         10  system?

         11                 MR. PASANEN: In this case, no. I

         12  think the point of this survey was to look at City

         13  agencies on one hand, and contractors on the other,

         14  and it did not distinguish between Council contracts

         15  and other kinds of contracts. It's an important

         16  distinction that ought to be looked at.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay, and

         18  one more general question I had. In response to, I

         19  mean, it is a little unfortunate that MOC folks

         20  aren't here, but did you find anything in their

         21  testimony, revealing would be too loaded a word,

         22  but, you know, did that change your perspective at

         23  all? Or did you feel that there was simply --

         24                 MS. WEIKART: Well, let me just say

         25  that they have got a new Director who is a little
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          2  more open, but he still represents the same

          3  administration so nothing has really changed. And

          4  what has changed is they more openly admit to the

          5  problem.

          6                 I do think that the solutions are

          7  still not there, as far as MOC is concerned, they

          8  haven't really talked about the real solutions.

          9                 For example, renewals. That should be

         10  a simple process because you are monitoring the

         11  agency's constant -- you are monitoring CBOs

         12  constantly, there is no reason that you wouldn't

         13  have a simplified process for the renewals, so they

         14  are not really talking about solutions. They have

         15  mentioned a couple, but they are actually quite

         16  small compared to the size of the problem.

         17                 And the other piece to that is, the

         18  two major changes they could make, other than the

         19  intimidation factor, the two major changes they

         20  could make was to simplify the process for renewals

         21  and put in a system where you have a number of time

         22  line and serious events that you track. So, you

         23  track the event, the City has notified a non-profit

         24  that they have got the award, then you track when

         25  was that signed, then you tracked when it went to
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          2  MOC, then you tracked when it came out of MOC, and

          3  if the City Council had those kind of events in the

          4  tracking system, then the City Council could over a

          5  period of time see the improvement, see the delays.

          6                 So, the two major pieces that need to

          7  happen, they didn't even talk about.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: We do have

          9  some, for member items we do have some ways to

         10  track, the problem is that my experience has been

         11  that the data entry isn't always done that would

         12  allow you to track where the project is. There is a

         13  system in place.

         14                 MS. WEIKART: Actually that may be for

         15  member items, most of it is non-member items, and

         16  there isn't a system in place that identifies those

         17  events and allows the City Council or the public or

         18  any non-profit to see when do those things happen.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Let me ask

         20  -- Glenn, were you going to respond?

         21                 MR. PASANEN: Yes, I want to add a

         22  couple of things. The Director of MOC raised some

         23  methodological questions rather than disagreeing

         24  with us on substantive grounds, and I thought that

         25  was interesting.
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          2                 On his comments about the ad hoc

          3  nature of some of the evidence that we provided, it

          4  is described clearly as such. What we are trying to

          5  do there and in our ongoing newsletter is to give a

          6  flavor of what the experience is for the typical

          7  contractor who very often deals with several

          8  agencies. And the Board of Ed information came up

          9  peripherally to our study because people were so

         10  upset about it in the context of several kinds of

         11  agencies that they must deal with.

         12                 We will follow up on that and get

         13  some more information, but the inference that we get

         14  from ad hoc information is that the system is in

         15  fact not controlled centrally where it should be,

         16  and one agency is operating differently from another

         17  agency, and that makes no sense.

         18                 Also, we are a bit amused to see a

         19  methodological question raised in a hearing like

         20  this from an administration whose sole evaluation of

         21  the massive change in the welfare policy is actually

         22  a 126-person telephone survey of clients who have

         23  left the public assistance rolls.

         24                 We have asked, as the Council has

         25  asked for some years now, to tell us what happened
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          2  to the 400,000 at the time of the study, 400,000

          3  people who are no longer receiving public assistance

          4  benefits. The only evidence that we have from HRA is

          5  a 126-person telephone survey, I will leave it at

          6  that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Let me go

          8  back to a point that MOC raised, and certainly has

          9  been the case, in my own experience I found millions

         10  of dollars worth of projects that had not been

         11  billed that were funded by my predecessor and I set

         12  out on a mission to try and understand where this

         13  was in the bureaucracy and so forth, and while I

         14  certainly from, again, limited experience, put a lot

         15  of blame on the bureaucracy in the agencies, I also

         16  did find that the entities receiving the money were

         17  not as aggressive as I think they should have been

         18  in doing what they could to ensure.

         19                 Now, here I am not generally talking

         20  about individual entities, I am not talking about

         21  the not-for-profit group, I am generally talking

         22  about CUNY or the New York Public Library, they

         23  didn't seem to know where their quarter of a million

         24  dollars was, and they didn't have any documentation

         25  that showed that they had followed up with the
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          2  agency, and I was wondering if that was a question

          3  that you ask, because it seems like it was an

          4  important one.

          5                 MS. WEIKART: You mean the extent to

          6  which non-profits actually raised a rukus, or had a

          7  paper trail?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes. And

          9  followed, you know, I am a big believer on paper

         10  trails, and I send letters to agencies that say you

         11  have not responded to my letter, I enclose for your

         12  review the last six letters that I sent you, and,

         13  you know, then it is just helpful that various

         14  people are knocking on the door, as it were.

         15                 MS. WEIKART: I can't emphasize enough

         16  how frightened non-profits are, how much non-profits

         17  will not come forward and say anything. I can't

         18  begin to paint that picture of how scared

         19  non-profits are to complain, and I worked for the

         20  City for a number of years, and I have never seen

         21  that kind of intimidation problem, and it boggles my

         22  mind that exists now in this country in 2001.

         23                 I mean, we cannot get CBOs to come

         24  here and sit in the audience, let alone testify.

         25                 So, I think that many of them will

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  not set a paper trail. They do not want to have

          3  several letters going to an agency saying where is

          4  my money. They will try to work informally through

          5  phone conversations. Often times they do not want to

          6  contact the City Council. They don't want to make

          7  anyone angry. And I can't emphasize the intimidation

          8  factor enough.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But let me

         10  ask you this: I accept that is what they are telling

         11  you, but would you submit that there may be a

         12  certain amount of ignorance out there as to how to

         13  work the system? Because I have found receiving

         14  entities that are really good at this. They get

         15  their schools, they get their cafeteria bills, and

         16  they know who to call, they know how to write, and

         17  then there are others that seem completely lost.

         18                 MS. WEIKART: It depends who you are.

         19  If you are a large non-profit and your board is very

         20  prestigious, then the odds are you can complain

         21  without fear of retribution. If you are a smaller

         22  non-profit, not as prestigious board, or if you are

         23  a controversial non-profit, the odds are that you

         24  are intimidated. So I think that is part of it.

         25                 But, of course, non-profits have a
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          2  range of expertise, and there are many non-profits

          3  who need help, and we actually provide, we actually

          4  have received a grant just to provide technical

          5  assistance to non-profits about how to conduct

          6  contracting processes, and we go out and we advise

          7  non-profits on how do you do this and where do you

          8  go for help. And we actually have a whole system in

          9  place to provide technical assistance, which has

         10  never been provided before, as far as we could tell.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Well, that

         12  sounds terrific. I do think going forward, if you

         13  are going to be studying this issue, and it sounds

         14  like you are going to, and it sounds like it is much

         15  needed, particularly for some outside group, I do

         16  think that if the Administration is claiming that

         17  some of the delays are caused by the entities, not

         18  providing the necessary information, it would be

         19  helpful to either be able to couch that or

         20  investigate it or get to the bottom.

         21                 Now, perhaps the intimidation factor

         22  makes it impossible, but if there were a way, I

         23  think it would be useful, and I suspect that there

         24  is some truth in that.

         25                 My own experience has been that the
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          2  entities don't know that they need to provide

          3  certain kinds of information and, you know, maybe

          4  the technical assistance part is part of the

          5  solution and we need to focus on that, but if you

          6  are out there serving anyway, I think that would be

          7  a useful area to shed some light on.

          8                 Thank you. I don't have any further

          9  questions.

         10                 I don't know if the Chair does.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I apologize. I had

         12  to go out. There was a press conference on the death

         13  penalty that I wanted to speak at.

         14                 Anyway, thank you.

         15                 As I stated before, I really want to

         16  thank you for your good work on this, and we intend

         17  to move forward --

         18                 MS. WEIKART: Yes, if I could just

         19  comment? I think one of the most important areas for

         20  the City Council to move forward in is one to try

         21  and convince MOC to take the renewal process outside

         22  of the regular process and make the renewal process

         23  much simpler.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

         25                 You know, we have suggested this at
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          2  least three or four times before, and I know that

          3  the new MOC chair Mr. Best didn't understand that it

          4  was this Committee that basically pushed until we

          5  could get the indicator and the MMR for the

          6  retroactive contracts, and it is clear that once you

          7  look at that, particularly with human service

          8  contracts, it is out of whack, the system is, and,

          9  you know, it's a no-brainer that it is not working,

         10  and it really is wrong to essentially balance our

         11  budgets on the backs of the smaller not-for-profits

         12  and human service providers.

         13                 MS. WEIKART: And the other

         14  consideration is the intimidation factor, I can't

         15  emphasize it enough, that CBOs will not come forward

         16  to complain, because they will lose any chance they

         17  have in getting the contract.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: As you know, we

         19  had two hearings on this prior to this one and

         20  essentially we could not get people to come in to

         21  testify because they were so afraid of retaliation.

         22  I actually offered to allow people to come in and

         23  testify with bags over their heads, but no takers.

         24                 Okay, thank you.

         25                 MR. PASANEN: Thank you.
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          2                 MS. WEIKART: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 And we have one last -- sorry, we

          6  have two last witnesses, if you want to come up

          7  together? Chuck Mohan, from DC 1707, AFSCME; and

          8  Glenn Huff, Sr., President of Local 205 and Day Care

          9  Employees, also from 1707.

         10                 Thank you, gentlemen. If you could

         11  both raise your right hands, please.

         12                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MR. HUFF: Yes.

         15                 MR. MOHAN: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you for

         17  attending.

         18                 And if you would identify yourselves

         19  for the record and then please proceed.

         20                 MR. HUFF: My name is Glenn Huff, Sr.,

         21  President of Local 205 Day Care Employees, and 1707.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Go ahead.

         23                 MR. HUFF: By the way, good afternoon,

         24  Chairwoman Freed.

         25                 I have come here regarding the pay
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          2  lag that we continually have in the day care system.

          3  As the day care sponsoring heads, boards, continue

          4  to not pay the employees on their scheduled pay

          5  days. I am appalled that they want us to continue to

          6  work without being paid, without any reason why or

          7  what day are we going to get paid. It continues to

          8  happen.

          9                 I think that any board that continues

         10  to not pay the members, I think there should be some

         11  remedy, I think the Board should be audited to find

         12  out why, the reason why the members are not being

         13  paid and they are not giving any reason, and I think

         14  my members shouldn't continue to work at the sites,

         15  and in order for them to get work, you have to be

         16  paid to get there, I don't think the TA is giving

         17  them any free fares to get to work.

         18                 As the Union President, I am willing

         19  to work with the City Council to remedy this and

         20  yearly problems, which is now the time to end. I

         21  think there is some way we can end this pay lag, and

         22  most of my members cannot afford to even miss a pay

         23  day because that is an enormous problem for them,

         24  such as eviction notice or their bills, their

         25  telephone is cut off, the gas, some reason why, you
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          2  know, that it needs to be rectified, and then the

          3  interest that they charge the members they have to

          4  pay, and I think that should be added to the

          5  sponsoring board, whoever is not paying the staff. I

          6  think that should be really looked into once again.

          7                 And I think that if not, again, the

          8  Board should be removed, once they find out if they

          9  are fiscally irresponsible, mismanagement of money,

         10  especially with a program that is constantly having

         11  problems paying. So, I think all of this should be

         12  looked into, and that is my main reason for coming

         13  to the hearing today. I appreciate you giving us the

         14  opportunity to do so today.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Certainly.

         16                 MR. MOHAN: Yes, Madam Chair, I am a

         17  staff representative who --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: You have to

         19  actually state your name for the record.

         20                 MR. MOHAN: Chuck Mohan, staff

         21  representative, District Council 1707, AFSCME.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         23                 MR. MOHAN: And we have been

         24  encountering this problem of pay lag for quite some

         25  time, and we have always tried to figure out a way
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          2  where our members can be paid, like everyone else,

          3  if they work a week, they should be paid for that

          4  week. As Council Member Lopez mentioned earlier,

          5  some places people, our members are waiting for six

          6  months, and we constantly call our representatives

          7  who try their best to do what they can to

          8  accommodate us and trying to get centers in their

          9  specific communities to get paid. But there are also

         10  problems that we understand that some of the boards

         11  of these centers and these communities are corrupt,

         12  and that is part of the problem.

         13                 We also feel that that should be

         14  looked into. And I give you a perfect example of

         15  Georgia Lavonia back in 1996, a day care center,

         16  where for two years, myself, the community, the

         17  teachers, were calling ACD at that time, now it is

         18  ACS, complaining about this center. Finally, two

         19  years later when the City moved in, the amount of

         20  money that was stolen already, which up until today

         21  has not been repaid to the members of our union,

         22  vacation time that they had on the books, many of

         23  them had 60 days in the books, and no one has

         24  responded to help these people.

         25                 We know that that Director, that
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          2  Chairperson of the Board was fined $67,000, along

          3  with the Director of that center.

          4                 Now, we took 11 grievances to

          5  arbitration. We won $177,000. Up until today we have

          6  only been paid $38,000. Now that money that the

          7  Chairperson was fined, obviously goes back to the

          8  City.

          9                 One of the things we can't understand

         10  is, when you are ending the contract, in this case I

         11  am giving this example, when you are ending a

         12  contract and a new board is taking over, why can't

         13  an easy continuation happen where everything that is

         14  owed from the old board, which has already been

         15  budgeted, be turned over to the new board,

         16  sponsoring board? And that is something that should

         17  be automatic.

         18                 And we have great concern for this,

         19  because remember, our members are at the lowest wage

         20  levels, and one of the things that gets our members

         21  very angry is, when the Yankees win the World

         22  Series, in two days you can find millions of dollars

         23  to pay overtime to have a parade, and these guys are

         24  making millions of dollars. Our members make $20,000

         25  or even maybe $30,000, but you can't find some money
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          2  somewhere, even though there is a surplus somewhere,

          3  to put in an escrow account that when this problem

          4  comes up at the end of every fiscal year, that at

          5  least the money can be used to pay our people. I am

          6  not talking only of day care, I am talking about

          7  Head Start, because we also represent Head Start

          8  workers.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

         10                 MR. MOHAN: So, we are asking that

         11  this matter be looked into more thoroughly and that

         12  some kind of way not to have this continue to

         13  happen, but that our members should be paid on time.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         16                 Again, thank you for coming and

         17  testifying, but I would make the offer that if there

         18  are specific day care centers where the payments are

         19  delayed, you could get in contact with myself and my

         20  counsel, we will try and intercede and talk to MOC

         21  and talk to the Comptroller's Office to see where

         22  the problems are.

         23                 Likewise, if there are specific

         24  centers where you think that something is, shall we

         25  say not above board, if you can let us know, we will
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          2  work with you on that as well. And we will continue

          3  to see what we can do to streamline this process so

          4  that those centers who are doing the work can get

          5  paid on time and that they not bear the burden of,

          6  you know, basically footing the bill for the City.

          7                 Because you make a very good point,

          8  of all of the -- the least people who can afford

          9  these delays are the ones that they seem most to be

         10  falling on.

         11                 MR. MOHAN: Right now the Center that

         12  is having problems is the Bayridge Day Care Center.

         13  I don't have the exact address, but I can get that

         14  to you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. As soon

         16  as I gavel this, Chuck, if you want to come up and

         17  give me the information.

         18                 MR. MOHAN: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: To my counsel, we

         20  will work with you and see what we can do to cut

         21  through that and make sure that this doesn't

         22  continue.

         23                 MR. MOHAN: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. Thank

         25  you very much.
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          2                 Are there any other witnesses?

          3                 We will continue to review this.

          4  Obviously we are going to be working with the

          5  Comptroller's Office. We are going to look at making

          6  some proposals. We expect we will probably have a

          7  hearing on that. We also want to go forward with the

          8  continuing oversight, particularly on renewals, so

          9  that that process is changed so that we don't get

         10  stuck in this. Because we have been hearing for

         11  almost two years now, oh, we are working it out and

         12  we are trying to do something but the process seems

         13  to remain so maybe we can kick in gear some of these

         14  changes.

         15                 Then, again, I want to thank City

         16  Project for all of their help.

         17                 Okay, meeting is adjourned.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 12:40 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.
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         15  related to any of the parties to this action by
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